
 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, OX28 1NB 
www.westoxon.gov.uk Tel: 01993 861000 

 

 

 

Wednesday, 3 September 2025 

 

Tel: 01993 861000 

e-mail: democratic.services@westoxon.gov.uk 

 

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

You are summoned to a meeting of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee which will be held 

in Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB on Monday, 

15 September 2025 at 2.00 pm. 

 

 
Giles Hughes 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To: Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Mark Walker (Vice-Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Mike Baggaley, 

Andrew Beaney, Adam Clements, Genny Early, Roger Faulkner, Andy Goodwin, 

David Jackson, Elizabeth Poskitt and Geoff Saul. 

 

Recording of Proceedings – The law allows the public proceedings of Council, Executive, and 

Committee Meetings to be recorded, which includes filming as well as audio-recording.  

Photography is also permitted. By participating in this meeting, you are consenting to be filmed. 

 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the 

Democratic Services officers know prior to the start of the meeting. 

 

Public Document Pack

Page 1

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/


 

 

 

AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  

To receive any apologies for absence from members of Sub-Committee. The quorum for 

the Sub-Committee is 3 members. 

 

2.   Declarations of Interest  

To receive any declarations of interest from members of the Sub-Committee on any 

items to be considered at the meeting. 

 

3.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 14) 

To approve the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Monday 18 August 2025. 

 

4.   Applications for Development (Pages 15 - 54) 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development, details of which are set out in the attached 

schedule. 
 

Recommendation: 

That the applications be determined in accordance with the recommendations of the 

Head of Planning. 

 

Pages  Application 

No. 

Address Planning Officer 

17-33 25/01100/FUL Land South of Milwood End, 

Long Hanborough  

Emile Baldauf-Clark 

34-47 25/01315/FUL Storage Land, Horseshoe 

Lane, Chadlington  

Emile Baldauf-Clark 

48-54 25/01834/HHD 29 Oxford Road, 

Woodstock  

Nathan Harris  

 

 

4.1  

 

25/01100/FUL Land South of Milwood End, Long Hanborough 

 

 

4.2   25/01315/FUL Storage Land, Horseshoe Lane, Chadlington 

 

 

4.3   25/01834/HHD 29 Oxford Road, Woodstock 

 

 

5.   Applications Determined under Delegated Powers (Pages 55 - 74) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of applications determined under delegated powers. 

 

Recommendation: 
1. That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 2



 

 

 

6.   Appeal Decisions (Pages 75 - 76) 

Purpose: 

To inform the Sub-Committee of any appeal decisions. 

 

Recommendation: 

1. That the report be noted by the Sub-Committee. 
 

7.   Site Visits  

Purpose 

To outline sites which in the Officer’s opinion, the Sub-Committee should visit prior to 

the Sub-Committee’s determination of that application at a future meeting.  
 

Recommendation 

1. To agree any site visits outlined by officers.  
 

 

(END) 

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

Minutes of the meeting of the 

Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

Held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Woodgreen, Witney, Oxfordshire OX28 1NB 

at 2.00 pm on Monday, 18 August 2025 

PRESENT 

Councillors: Julian Cooper (Chair), Mark Walker (Vice-Chair), Lidia Arciszewska, Mike 

Baggaley, Andrew Beaney, Roger Faulkner, Elizabeth Poskitt, Geoff Saul and Tim Sumner 

Officers:  Stephanie Eldridge (Principal Planner), Clare Anscombe (Senior Planner), Emile 

Baldauf-Clark (Planner), Rebekah Orriss (Planner), Mathew Taylor (Democratic Services 

Officer) and Anne Learmonth (Democratic Services Officer).  

Other Councillors in attendance: None.   

22 Apologies for Absence  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Adam Clements, Councillor David 

Jackson, Councillor Genny Early and Councillor Andy Goodwin.  

Councillor Tim Sumner substituted for Councillor David Jackson. 

23 Declarations of Interest  

Declarations of Interest were received as follows: 

25/00333/OUT Land East of Wroslyn Road, Freeland. 

Councillors Faulkner and Arcizsewska declared that the Wroslyn Road application was in their 

ward.  

24 Minutes of Previous Meeting  

Page 13, The Chair asked that the time of the site visit be removed as it was not decided at 

the meeting. 

The Chair proposed that the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 21 July 2025 be 

agreed by the Sub-Committee as a true and accurate record. The was seconded by Councillor 

Roger Faulkner, was put to the vote and agreed by the Sub-Committee.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Agree the minutes of the previous meeting held on Monday 21 July 2025 as a true and 

accurate record.  

25 Applications for Development  

26 24/005921/FUL Land and Barns South of Mill Farm, Widford, Burford.  

Clare Anscombe, Senior Planner, presented the application for the conversion of existing 

buildings to provide an office and dwelling (live-work accommodation) with associated works 

and landscaping. Alterations to existing access (amended plans).  

The Senior Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The Senior Planner drew the Sub-Committee’s attention to the Additional 

Representations report. The Biodiversity Officer had been consulted and had no 

objections to the application.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 The site is within the hamlet of Widford, consisted of two former agricultural barns 

and hard standing. Within the Cotswold National Landscape and residential dwellings 

were beside the site.  

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to objections from the Parish 

Council. 

 The proposed development would convert the existing buildings to provide an office 

and a 3-bedroom dwelling with associated works and landscaping, including alterations 

to the existing access.  

 Part of the barn would be demolished to allow for parking to be provided. 3 parking 

spaces would be provided and bicycle storage.   

 The materials to be used included glazing with perforated steel sheet cladding. The   

original position of the barns would be retained.   

Mike Hayson on behalf of, Residents of Widford addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the 

following points;  

 The proposed development was in a rural area and proposed materials were not in 

keeping with the surrounding properties and character of the area.  

 The square footage of the proposed dwelling was excessive and dominated the 

neighbouring properties.  

 No public transport would result in more cars to the site and the site access was 

unsuitable for large vehicles.  

Lisa Harrop, Widford Parish Council addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the following 

points; 

  Widford was a hamlet with no transport or amenities so any future residents would 

be reliant on cars, as would any employees.  

 The design and proposed materials were not in keeping with the landscape and 

character of the area.  

 From an ecological perspective there was limited data on Great Crested Newts.  

 A smaller scheme would reduce harm.  

Members asked about objections to the original  scheme. Lisa Harrop explained that after the 

Parish Council’s discussions with residents, concerns were raised over size and provision of 

parking and over development. The Parish Council requested comments from Oxfordshire 

County Council (OCC) highways but did not receive a response.  

David Burson, agent for the applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the following 

points;  

 The development was for a family with an office to support the business currently 

located in Burford, this would create a better work life balance.  

 The Council could not demonstrate a 5 Year housing land supply; the proposed 

development would provide housing and reuse an existing building.  

 

Page 6



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

Members asked about the benefits of moving the family’s business from Burford to a more 

rural location. David Burson explained that the development would give security to the 

business and create a better work life balance with the house providing a home for the family 

alongside an office to run the business. The owners of the development were invested in the 

area and keen to stay in the area long term. 

Councillor Rosie Pearson, Ward Member for Brize Norton and Shilton, addressed the Sub-

Committee which raised the following points;  

 The access to the site was quite tight with a public right of way used by farm vehicles.  

 Previously the barns had been considered for storage use, however there was a 

question on how this had been marketed.  

 The Sub-committee should consider a site visit.  

 If the Sub-Committee was minded to approve the application, would the Sub-

Committee consider a condition for the office space to be for ancillary use only.  

The Senior Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The last use of the barns and part of the hardstanding area  was for lawful storage use  

and this forms a baseline against which the application had been considered .  

 The Council cannot  demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and, the development 

would therefore contribute to meeting the district’s housing needs.  

 The continued use of the barns for storage would result in more traffic to the site. 

There would be  benefits to ecology and employment.  

 There were no objections from highways and ecology. Parking was not an issue on the 

site.  

 The building of the dwelling and office would enhance the character of the current site 

and create ongoing employment in the area.  

 The application was recommended for approval. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 Members acknowledged that a site visit would not be beneficial due to no objections 

from OCC Highways. The parking would be used for the residents of the property and 

the employees of the business. 

 Use of the office for an architectural business would result in less traffic than business 

use for storage.  

 Concerns were raised over the proposed materials, change from timber to steel,  

drainage, asbestos and the future use of the office which could change to being a living 

area. The Senior Planner confirmed that the change of materials reflected the original 

materials of the barns and so in their view, would conserve the character and 

appearance of the area. Further, details of surface water drainage could be controlled 

by condition and matters relating to asbestos were not relevant considerations as 

there was separate legislation controlling this. Officers also advised that a condition 

could be imposed requiring the dwelling to be occupied in association with the 

business if members were minded to. 

Page 7



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

Councillor Lidia Arcizsewska proposed the Sub-Committee approve the application with a 

condition that the dwelling should be occupied in association with the business. This was 

seconded by Councillor Mark Walker and put to the vote.  

Voting Record – unanimous  

The Sub-Committee resolved to: 

1. Approve the application with a condition that the dwelling should be occupied in 

association with the business. 

 

27 24/02171/FUL Land North of Woodstock Road, Charlbury  

Mike Cassidy, Principal Planner, presented the application for the erection of twenty six 

dwellings (including 46% affordable housing), the provision of public open space and 

landscaping, demolition of the existing garages and provision of new vehicular access via 

Woodstock Road and pedestrian access to Hughes Close and associated works. 

The Principal Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The application was for 26 new dwellings of which 46% would be affordable housing. 

Garages on the site would be demolished and new vehicular and pedestrian/cycle 

accesses created.  

 The site was on the South East side of Charlbury in the Charlbury Conservation Area 

and Cotswolds National Landscape (AONB). The site adjoins existing residential 

development on Hughes Close, Little Leas and Woodstock Road.  

 The site is bounded on all sides by trees and hedgerows, some of which are protected 

by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) some 50 years old.  

 A previous refused application had been dismissed on appeal with the Inspector raising 

concerns in relation to adverse landscape impacts upon the Cotswolds National 

Landscape (CNL); poor quality design and layout with areas dominated by hard 

landscaping; a lack of surveillance to some plots resulting in a ‘fear of crime’ and lack of 

favourable living conditions for future occupiers; adverse impact on the Charlbury 

Conservation Area; and adverse impact on the neighbouring property, No.36 Little 

Leas,  by reason of being visually overbearing only 2 metres from boundary, with a loss 

of outlook and daylight.  

 The application had been reduced by 2 houses to 26 dwellings and a wider tree/hedge 

planted boundary included with a buffer zone and managed landscaping. The 

building/plots closest to Little Leas had been pulled further back from the northern 

boundary and re-orientated to address the concerns regarding loss out  outlook and 

daylight raised by the appeal Inspector.  

 The proposal includes a mixture of 1, 2, 3 and 4 bedroom dwellings with 12 affordable 

housing units (46% of the total) proposed.  

 In the appeal decision, the Inspector noted there was no substantive evidence the trees 

originally protected by the TPO (some 50 years old) remained on site. Moreover, 

nearly three quarters of trees on the site were of low quality showing signs of disease 

and decay with limited life expectancy. The proposal would remove these trees and 

replace them with new tree planting of much better quality.   

Page 8



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 

Councillor Kenrick, Charlbury Town Council addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the 

following points;  

 The Town Council had engaged with the application in detail and information could be 

found online.  

 Concerns regarding surface water drainage had been raised by Thames Water, which 

highlighted the need for the provision of rainwater capture and greywater recycling 

within e the development.  

 The need for provision of defibrillators which the Council could not see this in the 

application.  

Grant Bayliss, agent for the applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the following 

points;  

 The site offered 26 new homes of which 46% were affordable – 12 houses.  

 The applicant was a family run business who worked closely with Cottsway Housing 

Association.  

 Local materials would be used for construction of the site with landscaping and buffer 

zone.  

 There would also be a play space as part of the S106 agreement with provision of a 

defibrillator.  

The Principal Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 Points raised by Councillor Kenrick concerning rainwater harvesting and greywater 

recycling could be covered by an amendment to condition 17 (surface water drainage) 

with reference being added to include details of rainwater harvesting and Greywater 

recycling to be agreed.  

 Whilst there was no planning policy which covered the provision of a defibrillator, 

given this had been agreed between the town council and applicant  it could be secured 

as part of the enhancement of the existing off-site play space facility in Charlbury as 

part of the S106 agreement. An additional informative was suggested relating to the 

provision of a Defibrillator, as part of the enhancement of existing off-site play space 

facilities in Charlbury contribution, to be secured by s106 legal agreement. 

 Parking provision was based on being accessible and close to dwellings, however a 

parking allocation plan could be provided and secured by condition. This was not 

considered to be necessary by officers. 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 The use of solar panels on the housing and use of renewable energy were not included 

in the application. The Principal Planner confirmed that whilst no solar panels are 

proposed, EV chargers would be included and the use of air source heat pumps for the 

heating and domestic hot water system. 

 Previous comments by Thames Valley Police regarding the design and layout of the site. 

It was confirmed that the applicant had amended the layout which made it more secure 

to the satisfaction of the Police.  

Page 9



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 Concerns about the trees and preservation. It was confirmed that many of the trees 

had self-seeded due to the site not being managed extensively. The trees to be 

removed were dying and of low quality. There was a complete biodiversity plan 

provided to be secured by condition.  

 The building/plots closest to the boundary with Little Lees had been pulled back almost 

the width of 2 gardens to prevent it appearing visually overbearing and resulting in a 

loss of outlook and daylight into the houses on Little Leas.  

 Provision  of garages, carports and sheds to lock away cycles had been included.  

The Chair proposed that the Sub-Committee approve the application in line with the officer 

recommendation and subject to an amendment to condition 17 (surface water drainage) to 

include reference to rainwater drainage and greywater harvesting and an additional informative 

relating to the provision of a Defibrillator, as part of the enhancement of existing off-site play 

space facilities in Charlbury contribution, to be secured by s106 legal agreement. This was 

seconded by Councillor Geoff Saul, put to the vote and agreed by the Sub-Committee.  

Voting Record – Unanimous  

The Sub-Committee resolved to: 

 

1. Approve the application in line with the officer recommendation and subject to an 

amendment to condition 17 (Surface water drainage scheme) to also include reference 

to provision for rainwater drainage and greywater harvesting and an additional 

informative relating to the provision of a Defibrillator, as part of the enhancement of 
existing off-site play space facilities in Charlbury contribution, to be secured by s106 

legal agreement.. 

 

28 25/00333/OUT Land East of 87-123 Wroslyn Road , Freeland  

Stephanie Eldridge, Principal Planner, presented the application for the erection of up to 60 

dwellings (Use Class C3), allotments, car parking and site access, plus open space, landscaping, 

associated engineering works and infrastructure (all matters reserved except means of access). 

(Amended parameter plan).  

The Principal Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The removal of objection from OCC regarding the highway, as set out in the additional 

representations report.  

 The site was for 60 residential dwellings with provision of 50% affordable housing. The 

site was a significant distance from the listed buildings in the parish.  

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to objections from the Parish 

Council.  

 The site would sit behind a mixture of modern house designs and would form a logical 

compliment to the edge of the village. The site would provide a community orchard, 

allotments and parking for 25 cars for school drop off and pick times.  

 

Page 10



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

Councillor Crocker, Freeland Parish Council addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the 

following points;  

 The farmland opposite was a green corridor.  

 The Parish Council had concerns about the capacity of the sewage works at Church 

Hanborough.  

 Access of a footpath would require part of the hedgerow to be removed.  

 Parking provision would urbanise the character of the village.  

 There were concerns about flooding and the erosion of the gap between Long 

Hanborough and Freeland villages.  

Nigel Pugsley, agent for Pye Homes addressed the Sub-Committee and raised the following 

points;  

 Pye Homes partnered with Blenheim Estates in 2018, the current application was for 

16 hoes with parking and access and would provide housing to meet the needs in the 

area with 50% of affordable housing included with a careful design to preserve the 

green gap and ecology.  

 

The Principal Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The Council cannot demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply and using the tilted 

balance the application is considered to be acceptable.  

 The application was within the north side of Wroslyn Road and complimented the 

existing pattern of development, the semi-rural character of the village would be 

preserved and there would be limited impact on the landscape. 

 The site would include provision for school parking, with a car park management plan 

to ensure the correct usage.  

 Local amenities included a bus service to and from the train station and neighbouring 

towns.  

 Financial contributions for the Parish Council were not yet agreed but could be 

delegated to officers subject to conditions working with the Parish Council for S106 

contributions.  

 The application was recommended for approval.   

 

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points: 

 Concerns about the modest size and rural character of the village being over 

developed. 60 houses would undermine the proportion and scale of the village. 

Concerns about the sewage capacity within this area.  

 Concerns about ancient woodlands and the ecology corridors of the river Evenlode to 

Witney and the need to protect these areas.  

 The need for affordable houses for younger generations who wish to remain in the 

village. The continued support for the school. 

Page 11



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 The heritage and historical environment with a focus on archaeological investigations in 

the area.  

 The Principal Planner confirmed that there would be a biodiversity net gain provided 

by a secured legal agreement. Acknowledgement of reoccurring sewage concerns and 

issues, however the Environment Agency did not object to the application and 

Grampian conditions could be included.  

 For access to the woodland an informative could be added.  

 

Councillor Lidia Arcizsewska proposed the Sub-Committee refuse the application against 

officer recommendations . This was seconded by Councillor Mark Walker and put to the vote.  

Voting Record – For refusal 3; Against refusal 5; Abstention 1  - the vote fell.  

 

Councillor Geoff Saul proposed the Sub-Committee approve the application to include a 

condition for the flexibility of the layout of public open space/allotments/parking areas. This 

was seconded by Councillor Andrew Beaney, put to the vote and agreed by the Sub-

Committee.  

Voting Record – For approval 5;  Against approval 3;  Abstention 1.  

The Sub-Committee resolved to: 

1. Approve the application to include a condition for the flexibility of the layoutof public 

open space/allotments/parking areas . 

 

The Chair advised that the Sub-Committee had further applications to consider which would 

take the time over the 3 hour time limit for the meeting and proposed that the Sub-

Committee vote to extend the meeting time by 1 hour. This was unanimously agreed by the 

Sub-Committee.  

 

29 25/01227/OUT Broadstone Farm, Charlbury  

Emile Baldauf-Clark, Planner, presented the application for the outline planning permission 

(with some matters reserved except for means of access and layout) to demolish the existing 

agricultural building and erection of a self-build dwelling house with associated operations. 

The Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The application was before the Sub-Committee due to objections from the Parish 

Council.  

 The site was on the edge of Charlbury and within the Cotswold National Landscape 

and the Charlbury Conservation Area.  

 The current buildings on the site would be removed and replaced with a modern self-

build dwelling.  

 The design would have an L shaped footprint that would sit comfortably within the plot 

although it would be slightly larger than the current building. 

Page 12



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 The proposed dwelling would be a single storey wooden clad barn style design with a 

flat roof extension. Materials used would be wooden cladding and natural stone.  

Mr Blakesley-Grimes, applicant, addressed the Sub-Committee which raised the following 

points;  

 The house would be for the applicant’s family who have lived in Charlbury for 15 years.  

 The new design would enhance the conservation area.  

 Due to the family plans to live in the dwelling there would not be further development 

on the site.  

The Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The Council could not demonstrate a 5 year housing land supply. The application was 

in line with policy OS2.  

 The design was modest and did not encroach on the surrounding countryside. The site 

was well screened.  

 There would be short term economic benefits whilst the dwelling was being 

constructed. 

 The application was recommended for approval with the decision delegated back to 

officers to secure the legal agreement regarding self-build status.   

The Chair then invited the Sub-Committee to discuss the application, which raised the 

following points:  

 The Sub-Committee agreed that the application was a development with merits and 

encouraged self-building.  

 Comments from the Conservation Officer were positive however there was no up to 

date information on self-build targets.  

 

Councillor Mark Walker proposed the Sub-Committee approve the application in line with 

officer recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Lidia Arcizsewska, put to the vote 

and agreed by the Sub-Committee.  

Voting record – Unanimous  

 

The Sub-Committee resolved to: 

1. Approve the application in line with officer recommendations. 

 

30 25/01319/LBC Feathers Hotel, 16-20 Market Street, Woodstock  

Rebekah Orriss, Planner, presented the application for the addition of 2 poles and flags.  

The Planner’s presentation addressed the following points: 

 The application proposed two flag poles on the front elevation of the hotel above the 

main pedestrian entrance.  

Page 13



Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee 

18/August2025 

 

 

 The application was objected to by the Conservation and Design Officer due to size of 

the flagpoles which would cause harm to the historic and architectural design of the 

building.  

 The scale of the flag poles was not in keeping with the hotel style and an incongruous 

addition to the frontage of the building giving a cluttered appearance and did not 

preserve the character of the building.  

 The application was recommended for refusal.  

Councillor Elizabeth Poskitt proposed the Sub-Committee refuse the application in line with 

the officer’s recommendations. This was seconded by Councillor Roger Faulkner and put to 

the vote.  

Voting Record – For Refusal 7;  Against Refusal 2; Abstentions 0.  

The Sub-Committee Resolved to: 

1. Refuse the application in line with the officer’s recommendations. 

 

31 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers  

The report giving details of the applications determined under Delegated Powers was 

received, explained by the officers and noted by the Sub-Committee. 

 

32 Appeal Decisions  

There were no appeal decisions since the previous Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee. 

 

 

The Meeting closed at 5.26 pm 

 

CHAIR 

Page 14



 

WEST OXFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 

  

UPLANDS AREA PLANNING SUB-COMMITTEE 

 

Date: 15th September 2025 

 

 
REPORT OF THE HEAD OF PLANNING 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Purpose: 

To consider applications for development details of which are set out in the following pages. 

 

Recommendations: 

To determine the applications in accordance with the recommendations of the Head of Planning. 

The recommendations contained in the following pages are all subject to amendments in the light of 

observations received between the preparation of the reports etc and the date of the meeting. 

 

List of Background Papers 
 
 

All documents, including forms, plans, consultations and representations on each application, but 

excluding any document, which in the opinion of the ‘proper officer’ discloses exempt information as 

defined in Section 1001 of the Local Government Act 1972.        

                                                 

Please note that: 

1. Observations received after the reports in this schedule were prepared will be summarised in a 

document which will be published late on the last working day before the meeting and available 

at the meeting or from www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings  

 

 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4

http://www.westoxon.gov.uk/meetings


Item Application Number Address Officer 

 

1 

 

25/01100/FUL Land South Of Millwood End 

 

Mr Emile 

Baldauf-Clark 

 

2 

 

25/01315/FUL Storage Land  Horseshoe Lane 

 

Mr Emile 

Baldauf-Clark 

 

3 

 

25/01834/HHD 29 Oxford Road Woodstock 

 

Nathan Harris 

 

Page 16



 

Application Number 25/01100/FUL 
Site Address Land South Of 

Millwood End 

Long Hanborough 

Oxfordshire 

  
Date 3rd September 2025 

Officer Mr Emile Baldauf-Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve subject to Legal Agreement 

Parish Hanborough Parish Council 

Grid Reference 441179 E       214473 N 

Committee Date 15th September 2025 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of a self-build dwelling and detached garage with associated access and landscaping. 

 

 

Page 17



 

Applicant Details: 

 

Mathew Bowden 

55 Abingdon Road 

Standlake 

Witney 

Oxfordshire 

OX29 7QH 

United Kingdom 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

WODC Housing Enabler No Comment Received.  
 

OCC Highways Recommendations 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

condition 

 

Conditions 

 

• G28 parking as plan. 

 

 

Comments 

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact (in terms of highway safety) on the adjacent highway network 

 

Adjacent to the access Millwood End is narrow with vehicles parked 

along the length. Given the scale of development, speed and vehicle 

flows I cannot demonstrate sufficient harm as to warrant the refusal 

of the applications for reasons of highway safety   
 

Conservation And Design 

Officer 

No objections  

 

District Ecologist Acceptable subject to conditions and informative.  
 

Env Health Contamination No objections in principle to the application. However, the varying 

deposits of waste materials onsite and the uneven ground (that could 

indicate further buried waste) is such that the build-up of 

contamination of the ground could occur over a number of years 

whilst the site has remained undeveloped. Additionally, the historical 

use of the site as an allotment could contribute to the potential 

contamination of the ground due to the 'home soil improvers' and 

pesticides often used on such sites. Therefore, the following condition 

Page 18



is recommended so as to ensure that the land is suitable for the 

proposed use. 

 

Thames Water No Comment Received.  
 

WODC Drainage No Objection subject to conditions  
 

Newt Officer No objection  
 

WODC Tree Officer No objection  
 

Parish Council No Comment Received.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Eight objection comments have been received from seven individual objectors. The responses 

raise a number of consistent concerns, which can be summarised under the following themes: 

 

• Traffic and highways concerns: Many objectors highlight the narrow access track and 

existing congestion on Millwood End, particularly during Farmability activity days. 

Concerns include increased vehicle movements, parking pressures, and safety risks for 

pedestrians and residents. 

• Impact on the Conservation Area and landscape character: Several comments raise 

concerns about the proximity of the proposed dwelling to the Millwood End 

Conservation Area, noting that the design and materials are not in keeping with the 

local vernacular and may harm the character of the area. 

• Ecological harm and biodiversity loss: Objectors refer to potential disruption to local 

wildlife and habitats, including concerns about tree removal and the impact on 

biodiversity corridors. 

• Design and scale: The proposed dwelling is described as overly large and out of 

character with surrounding properties. Some objectors suggest the materials proposed 

are inappropriate for the setting. 

• Speculative nature and cumulative impact: Multiple comments express concern that the 

application is speculative and should be considered alongside the neighbouring proposal 

(25/01099/FUL), with fears of further development and precedent-setting. 

• Amenity and neighbourliness: Concerns are raised about the impact on neighbouring 

properties, including loss of privacy, increased noise, and disruption during construction. 

 

2.2 Two support comments have been received. Supporters highlight the following themes: 

 

• Design and compatibility: The proposed dwellings are considered to be environmentally 

sensitive and preferable to larger-scale developments in the area. 

• Community integration: One supporter notes the applicants' longstanding connection to 

the area and their positive contribution to the local community. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The proposal is supported in principle by both national and local planning policy, including the NPPF 

and the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, which encourage sustainable, well-designed housing in 

appropriate locations. 

 

3.2 The site is located within a sustainable settlement and benefits from existing infrastructure, access, 

and proximity to local services, making it suitable for modest residential development. 

 

3.3 The proposed dwelling is of a modest scale and is carefully designed to integrate with the 

surrounding landscape and built form, using materials such as Cotswold stone, clay tiles, and timber 

cladding that reflect the local vernacular. 

 

3.4 The scheme incorporates a range of sustainability measures, including high-performance insulation, a 

ground source heat pump, and airtightness technology, contributing to low-carbon living and long-

term energy efficiency. 

 

3.5 The design has been developed to minimise visual impact, with a low ridge height, varied rooflines, 

and sensitive landscaping proposals that retain and enhance existing vegetation. 

 

3.6 The proposal includes ecological enhancements such as bat boxes, swift boxes, bee bricks, and native 

hedgerow planting, and is supported by a Biodiversity Net Gain strategy. 

 

3.7 The dwelling will be constructed using Oakwrights' post-and-beam oak frame system, with off-site 

fabrication reducing construction time, disruption, and environmental impact. 

 

3.8 The development contributes positively to local housing supply, supports the self-build agenda, and 

makes efficient use of land within an established residential context. 

 

3.9 In light of the above, the applicant respectfully requests that planning permission be granted for this 

sustainable and contextually appropriate proposal. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

H2NEW Delivery of new homes 

H5NEW Custom and self build housing 

EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH2 Landscape character 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH7 Flood risk 

EH8 Environmental protection 

EH10 Conservation Areas 

EH16 Non designated heritage assets 

T4NEW Parking provision 

NPPF 2024 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NATDES National Design Guide 

Page 20



The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a self-build dwelling and detached 

garage with associated access and landscaping at Land South of Millwood End in Long Hanborough. 

The application site relates to a section of land within the established Market Garden and grow 

houses which are used to grow and supply a shop and café located in Eynsham.  

 

5.2 The application is before members as the Parish Council's views are clearly contrary to those of 

your Officers. 

 

5.3 Whilst the site does not fall within the Millwood End Conservation Area, it adjoins it along the 

northern boundary and as such the main considerations of this application are the impact of the 

proposed development on the Conservation Area. Officers note that the Cotswolds National 

Landscape border (CNL) - formerly known as the AONB, sits approximately 100 metres to the 

north of the site. However, the built-up area of Millwood End sits between the site and the CNL and 

therefore is not considered to have an impact upon its setting in the wider landscape.   

 

5.4 The site sits adjacent to the self-build dwelling approved under ref: 25/01099/FUL which is referred 

to as "Plot 2" in the submitted Proposed and Existing Location & Block Plans.   

 

Principle 

 

5.5 The starting point for assessing the principle of development for new residential units starts with 

Policy OS2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 (WOLP) which outlines the spatial strategy for 

focusing development. As per the Settlement Hierarchy found within the supporting text of OS2, 

Long Hanborough is identified as a Rural service centre which states that "….Long Hanborough has a 

more restricted range of services and facilities. Consequently, these rural service centres are suitable 

for a modest level of development to help reinforce their existing roles…. Proposals for residential 

development will be considered in accordance with Policy H2 of this Local Plan." 

 

5.6 Policy H2 goes on to outline the requirements for new residential development and for this location 

it outlines that: "New dwellings will be permitted at the main service centres, rural service centres 

and villages in the following circumstances:  

 

• On previously developed land within or adjoining the built up area provided the loss of 

any existing use would not conflict with other plan policies and the proposal complies 

with the general principles set out in Policy OS2 and any other relevant policies in this 

plan;  

• On undeveloped land within the built up area provided that the proposal is in 

accordance with the other policies in the plan and in particular the general principles in 

Policy OS2.  

• On undeveloped land adjoining the built up area where convincing evidence is presented 

to demonstrate that it is necessary to meet identified housing needs, it is in accordance 

with the distribution of housing set out in Policy H1 and is in accordance with other 

policies in the plan in particular the general principles in Policy OS2." 

 

Page 21



5.7  The site is considered to be previously developed land which sits outside of the main built up area 

of the village. Officers, however, note the approved Outlined and Reserved matter consents under 

ref: 22/01330/OUT & 24/00795/RES, which consent a residential development of 150 houses on the 

adjacent land. These consents are considered to be material in assessing the current proposal, as it 

demonstrates a precedent for residential development in this location and supports the view that the 

site can be considered to adjoin the built-up area of Long Hanborough.  

 

5.8  Further, the approval of the adjacent self-build dwelling (ref: 25/01099/FUL) which is referred to as 

"Plot 2" in the submitted Proposed and Existing Location & Block Plans is also relevant and sets a 

precedent for the consideration of this application.  

 

5.9 Given the existing use of the site as part of  the Market Garden operation, which includes built 

structures such as grow houses and associated infrastructure, officers consider that the land may 

reasonably be classified as previously developed. This further supports the proposal's compliance 

with Policy H2, subject to the development satisfying the general principles of Policy OS2 and other 

relevant policies of the WOLP which are assessed in subsequent sections of this report.  

 

The Council's housing land supply position and the implications of the NPPF 

 

5.10 Policies H1 and H2 of the WOLP identify an overall housing requirement of 15,950 homes to be 

delivered in the period 2011 - 2031. Ordinarily, this would be used to calculate the Council's five-

year housing land supply. However, the Council has undertaken a formal review of the WOLP in 

accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) 

Regulations 2012 and in doing so has determined that the housing trajectory of Policies H1 and H2 

are out of date and need to be reviewed. In accordance with national policy, because those policies 

are now more than 5 years' old, until such time as a new housing requirement is determined through 

the new Local Plan, the District Council will calculate its five-year housing land supply position on the 

basis of local housing need using the Government's standard method. An updated HLS position 

statement has not been published by the LPA since the December 2024 revisions to the NPPF. 

Nevertheless, officers consider it relevant to note that the recent changes to the NPPF are likely to 

increase the housing requirement for the following reasons: 

 

5.11 Paragraph 61 sets the overall aim of policy as meeting an area's identified housing need, including 

with an appropriate mix of housing types for the local community (removing previous reference to 

'meeting as much of an area's identified housing need as possible'). 

 

5.12 Paragraph 62 confirms that housing requirements will be based on local housing need ('LHN'), as 

calculated using the standard method, which officers understand will result in the LHN figure for 

West Oxfordshire increasing from 570 dpa to 905 dpa, which is likely to have a significant impact on 

its deliverable HLS position. 

 

5.13 Paragraph 78 inter alia re-introduces a buffer that is likely to be 5% for West Oxfordshire, as its 

Housing Delivery Test figures have to date never been below 85% (Nonetheless, this will increase 

the requirement further, again tending to worsen the deliverable HLS position). 

 

5.14 For a combination of reasons relating to the changes identified above, officers expect the LPA's 

HLS position to worsen from the 4.3 years it has most recently been able to demonstrate at various 

appeals that were determined following public inquiries. As such, officers anticipate that the LPA's 

HLS shortfall is likely to rise when its next HLS position statement is published; and for the purposes 

Page 22



of this application, officers accept that the LPA cannot currently demonstrate a full 5-year deliverable 

HLS and accordingly under the operation of footnote 8, paragraph 11(d) is engaged. 

 

Conclusions on the principle of residential development 

 

5.15 In view of the above, it is clear that the decision-making process for the determination of this 

application is therefore to assess whether: 

 

i. the application of policies in the Framework that protect areas or assets of particular 

importance provides a strong reason for refusing the development proposed; or 

 

ii. any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, 

when assessed against the policies in the Framework taken as a whole, having particular regard 

to key policies for directing development to sustainable locations, making effective use of land, 

securing well-designed places and providing affordable homes, individually or in combination. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.16 The proposed dwelling is sited centrally within Plot 1, which lies adjacent to the southern boundary 

of No. 83 Millwood End and benefits from an existing access track that also serves the market garden 

and the approved dwelling at Plot 2. The layout has been carefully considered to ensure the new 

home integrates sensitively into its semi-rural surroundings, with the building positioned to maximise 

southern garden space while maintaining privacy from neighbouring properties to the north. 

 

5.17 The dwelling is designed as a 1.5-storey oak-framed structure with a total gross external floor area 

of approximately 290m². The massing is broken up through the use of a glazed gable to the rear, 

varied rooflines, and a modest front porch, which collectively reduce visual impact and contribute to 

a well-articulated form. The associated garage is a two-bay structure designed in the Cotswold style, 

providing covered parking and incorporating an EV charging point. 

 

5.18 Materials proposed include a combination of weatherboarding and Cotswold stone, with clay roof 

tiles, reflecting the local vernacular and ensuring the building harmonises with its context. The design 

prioritises sustainability, incorporating high-performance insulation systems, a ground source heat 

pump, and airtightness measures such as Aerobarrier technology to achieve near-Passivhaus 

standards. Fenestration is oriented to maximise solar gain, with the principal glazed elevation facing 

southwest. 

 

5.19 Landscaping proposals include the retention of existing trees and hedgerows, supplemented by new 

native planting along the western and southern boundaries. Ecological enhancements such as bat 

boxes, swift boxes, and bee bricks are integrated into the scheme, supporting biodiversity net gain. 

The shared access arrangement with Plot 2 and the market garden ensures continuity of use and 

minimises disruption to the existing site function. 

 

5.20 The proposal is considered to comply with Policy OS4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, 

which seeks high-quality design that respects and enhances the character of the locality. It also aligns 

with Paragraph 130b of the NPPF, which promotes visually attractive development through good 

architecture and effective landscaping. The dwelling is well screened from public views and is not 

considered to result in any adverse impacts on visual amenity. 

 

 

Page 23



 

Heritage Impacts 

 

Impact on Conservation Area 

 

5.21 Whilst not located within the Millwood End Conservation Area, it does abut it along the northern 

boundary and as such, Officers are required to take account of section 72(1) of the Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that, with respect to buildings 

or other land in a conservation area, special attention shall be paid to the desirability of preserving or 

enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  Further the paragraphs of section 16 

'Conserving and enhancing the historic environment ' of the NPPF are relevant to consideration of 

the application.  

 

5.22 The Millwood End Conservation Area Character Appraisal identifies the western limb of Millwood 

End as having a strongly linear form and semi-rural character, with "significant views over adjoining 

farmland" noted as a key feature. The application site is identified within these significant views on the 

appraisal map. However, the site context has changed considerably since the appraisal was adopted, 

and further, the approval of outline and reserved matters applications 22/01330/OUT and 

24/00795/RES, which consents new built form (150 new houses) will alter the visual character of the 

area significantly once built out. These changes have and will continue to reduce the sensitivity of the 

site in terms of its contribution to the wider landscape setting and views from Millwood End. 

 

5.23 The proposed dwelling is set well back from Millwood End and adopts a restrained one-and-a-half 

storey form with a low ridge and eaves height. The massing and orientation have been carefully 

considered to ensure the building sits unobtrusively within the landscape. This approach aligns with 

the guidance in the Conservation Area Character Appraisal and the Proposals for Preservation and 

Enhancement document, which encourage new development to be of a scale and form that 

complements the existing character and avoids visual intrusion. 

 

5.24 Materials proposed include Cotswold stone, timber cladding, and clay roof tiles, all of which are 

consistent with the local vernacular and referenced within the appraisal as contributing to the area's 

architectural coherence. The oak frame construction will age naturally and harmonise with the 

surrounding environment over time. These choices contribute to a sympathetic architectural 

language that respects the character of the Conservation Area 

 

5.25 Your officers consider that the proposal respects the special qualities and historic context of the 

Conservation Area and maintains the appearance of the heritage assets given the nature of what is 

proposed and its location. The development complies with the relevant provisions of the NPPF and 

local policy EH10 and would not give rise to any adverse impacts in regard to heritage or visual 

amenity. 

 

Impacts on Non-designated heritage assets 

 

5.26 The application site lies adjacent to a number of locally listed buildings identified in the Millwood 

End Conservation Area Character Appraisal, located along Millwood End and forming part of the 

historic grain of development in Long Hanborough. These include No. 83 Millwood End to the north 

of the site, which is noted for its contribution to the linear settlement pattern and vernacular 

character of the area. While the site itself does not contain any designated or non-designated 

heritage assets, its proximity to these buildings requires careful consideration under Policy EH16 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. Policy EH16 states that non-designated heritage assets are 

Page 24



irreplaceable and that proposals affecting them should avoid harm or loss. A balanced judgement 

must be made, taking into account the significance of the asset, the scale of any harm, and the 

benefits of the development. The principles set out for designated assets in Policies EH11, EH14, and 

EH15 are also applicable. 

 

5.27 The appraisal highlights the architectural coherence of Millwood End, particularly the use of 

coursed limestone rubble, clay tiles, and modest building forms. The proposed dwelling reflects these 

characteristics through its use of Cotswold stone, timber cladding, clay roof tiles, and oak framing, 

which are sympathetic to the local vernacular. Given its set-back position, low-profile design, and 

natural screening, the development is not considered to result in any harm to the significance or 

setting of these non-designated heritage assets. 

 

5.28 In conclusion, the proposal accords with Policy EH16 of the WOLP, and respects the character and 

setting of locally listed buildings identified in the Conservation Area Character Appraisal. No adverse 

impacts are anticipated on nearby non-designated heritage assets. 

 

Landscape Impacts  

 

5.29 The application site lies approximately 100 metres south of the boundary of the Cotswolds 

National Landscape (CNL), formerly designated as the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB). 

However, the built-up area of Millwood End sits between the site and the CNL, providing a clear 

physical and visual buffer. The intervening built form, mature vegetation, and topography effectively 

screen the site from the wider landscape, ensuring that the proposal does not intrude upon the 

setting or character of the CNL. As such,  your officers consider that the proposal would not result 

in any adverse impact on the setting or character of the wider designated landscape. 

 

5.30 The site falls within the Lower Evenlode Valley character area, and more specifically within the 

Semi-enclosed Limestone Wolds - large scale sub-area, as defined in the West Oxfordshire 

Landscape Assessment (1998). This landscape is typified by gently rolling landforms, agricultural fields, 

and intermittent tree cover, with development generally concentrated in small settlements. The 

proposed dwelling, being modest in scale and designed with a low ridge height and traditional 

materials, is considered to sit comfortably within this landscape typology. The proposed dwelling, 

being modest in scale and well screened by existing vegetation, is considered to be in keeping with 

the established character of the area. 

 

5.31 Furthermore, the site context is undergoing significant change due to the approved Outline and 

Reserved Matters consents under references 22/01330/OUT and 24/00795/RES, which permit 

residential development on adjacent land. This alters the landscape setting of the site, transitioning it 

from a semi-rural edge to a more integrated part of the built-up area. While it is acknowledged that 

there may be some short-term visual impacts during the interim period before surrounding 

developments are implemented, these are considered temporary and limited in nature. Given the 

time constraints associated with the extant permissions, it is reasonable to expect that the proposed 

dwelling and adjacent schemes will be delivered within a similar timeframe, likely within the next 

three years, resulting in a coherent and consolidated built form. The proposal will therefore be read 

in conjunction with this emerging development, reducing its perceived isolation and reinforcing its 

relationship with the evolving settlement pattern. The development is not considered to result in 

coalescence or sprawl, but rather reflects a logical and contained extension of the existing built 

environment. 

 

Page 25



5.32 In conclusion, the proposal is considered to comply with Policy EH2 of the West Oxfordshire Local 

Plan 2031, which seeks to conserve and enhance the District's natural environment. The 

development respects the prevailing landscape character, avoids harm to the setting of the CNL, and 

responds positively to the changing context of the site. The proposed landscaping scheme, including 

ecological enhancements and permeable surfacing, contributes to the overall quality and sustainability 

of the scheme, ensuring that the development is well integrated and visually appropriate. 

 

Impact on amenity 

 

5.33 In terms of amenity for the future occupiers, the proposed dwelling provides an internal floorspace 

of in access of 240m2, significantly exceeding the minimum requirement of 128m2 for a 5 bedroom 

dwellings as set out it the Technical Housing Standards - nationally described space standard. The 

plot is generous in size and includes a substantial rear garden, enclosed by a combination of new and 

existing planting, which offers a high-quality external amenity space. The proposal is therefore 

considered to provide sufficient internal and external amenity for future residents. 

 

5.34 With regards to neighbouring amenity the site lies adjacent to the rear boundary of No. 83 

Millwood End. However, the proposed dwelling is set approximately 13 metres from this boundary 

with the garage positioned partially in between. This separation distance, combined with the 

orientation and existing mature screening along this boundary, is sufficient to prevent any adverse 

impacts in terms of overlooking, loss of privacy, or overbearing effects. 

 

5.35 Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) emphasises the importance of 

creating places that are safe, inclusive, and promote health and wellbeing, with a high standard of 

amenity for existing and future users. Officers have assessed the proposal against these principles and 

conclude that the development would not give rise to any unacceptable impacts on residential 

amenity. The proposal is therefore considered acceptable in this regard. 

 

Highways 

 

5.36 Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, has been consulted on the 

application and has raised no objections in relation to highway safety or convenience. The submitted 

plans include sufficient on-site parking provision, and the proposal has been assessed as not having a 

significant detrimental impact on the adjacent highway network. 

 

5.37 While Millwood End is noted to be narrow with on-street parking along its length, the scale of the 

proposed development, combined with low traffic speeds and flows, does not give rise to 

demonstrable harm that would warrant refusal on highway safety grounds. A condition has been 

recommended to secure parking provision in accordance with the submitted plans.  

 

5.38 On this basis, the proposal is considered acceptable in highway terms and complies with Policy T4 

of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

Trees 

 

5.39 A comprehensive Arboricultural Survey and Impact Assessment (AIA), Tree Survey Schedule, and 

Tree Constraints Plan have been submitted in support of the application. These documents identify a 

total of 17 individual trees and 8 tree groups within or adjacent to the site. The majority of trees are 

of moderate quality (Category B), with one high-quality tree (Category A), and one dead Elm 

Page 26



(Category U) deemed unsuitable for retention due to safety concerns. The removal of the Category 

U tree (T12) is recommended independently of the development proposals. 

 

5.40 The proposed layout has been carefully designed to avoid significant conflict with the root 

protection areas (RPAs) of all retained trees. Minor incursions are noted, particularly near Tree T6, 

but these are within tolerances set by BS5837:2012 and are considered acceptable. The most easterly 

plot lies close to the canopy of T6, and minor lateral pruning may be required to facilitate 

construction. This would be undertaken in accordance with BS3998:2010 and supervised by a 

qualified arboriculturist. 

 

5.41 The resurfacing of the compacted access track, which passes beneath the canopies of trees T1, T2, 

T3, T16, and T17, is also considered low impact. The existing compaction is likely to have already 

restricted root growth, and the proposed upgrade, utilising the existing surface as a sub-base with a 

new wearing course, will minimise disturbance to underlying roots. 

 

5.42 Tree protection fencing and temporary ground protection are proposed in line with BS5837:2012 

and are clearly shown on the Tree Retention, Removal, and Protection Plan. These measures will be 

installed prior to any construction activity and maintained throughout the build phase. Additional 

recommendations include the removal of raised soil levels around trees T13 and group G7 to 

prevent long-term decline due to restricted gaseous exchange and nutrient uptake. 

 

5.43 No demolition is required, and all proposed hard surfacing, including patios and driveways, is 

located outside RPAs. Should any unforeseen excavation or level changes be required near retained 

trees, further arboricultural input will be sought to ensure compliance with best practice. 

 

5.44 In summary, the development poses negligible arboricultural impact, retains all trees of value, and 

incorporates robust protection measures. The proposal is considered to comply with Policy EH2 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and is acceptable from an arboricultural perspective. 

 

Ecology 

 

5.45 A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (PEA) prepared by Ecoconsult in June 2025 has been submitted 

in support of the application. The report provides a comprehensive assessment of the site and 

concludes that impacts to most protected and priority species can be scoped out. However, a 

residual risk remains for hedgehogs, reptiles and amphibians, and nesting birds. A Precautionary 

Method of Works (PMW) statement has been included to address these risks, and a condition is 

recommended to ensure its implementation. 

 

5.46 The site is located within an Amber Zone on the NatureSpace Great Crested Newt (GCN) Impact 

Risk Map. Although two ponds supporting GCN are located approximately 350 metres south of the 

site, the closest pond within 250 metres is a small plastic garden pond with negligible suitability. The 

NatureSpace officer has confirmed that the risk of offence is highly unlikely and supports the use of a 

compliance condition to secure the precautionary measures outlined in the PEA. 

 

5.47 The applicant has stated that the proposal qualifies for exemption from statutory Biodiversity Net 

Gain (BNG) under the self-build exemption, as it comprises fewer than nine dwellings, is under 0.5 

hectares, and consists exclusively of self-build or custom housebuilding. If this definition is met, BNG 

requirements do not apply. Nonetheless, local policy EH3 and paragraph 192(b) of the NPPF require 

all development to deliver biodiversity gains. 

 

Page 27



5.48 Ecological enhancements are proposed as part of the scheme. These include two wall-mounted bat 

boxes on the southeast elevation of the dwelling, two bat access tiles integrated into the garage roof 

using a Type 1F bitumen membrane, three swift boxes on the northeast elevation, and two bee 

bricks on the southwest elevation. In addition, native landscaping is proposed, including 67 metres of 

new yew hedgerow planting along the eastern and southern boundaries, and a planting scheme 

comprising at least 50% species from the RHS Plants for Pollinators list. 

 

5.49 To secure these enhancements, a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP) condition is recommended, 

requiring full specifications, product details, planting schedules, and inclusion of features on elevation 

drawings. A further condition is recommended requiring photographic evidence of implementation 

prior to first occupation. 

 

5.50 In summary, subject to the recommended conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable in 

ecological terms and complies with Policy EH3 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and 

paragraphs 187, 192, and 193 of the NPPF. 

 

 

Drainage  

 

5.51 The site lies within Flood Zone 1 and is at very low risk of surface water flooding. The proposed 

drainage strategy includes permeable gravel surfacing and roof water directed to water butts and 

soakaways. The WODC Drainage Officer has raised no objection, subject to conditions requiring a 

full surface water drainage scheme and an exceedance flow routing plan. Thames Water were 

consulted on this application but no comments have been received to date. The proposal is 

considered acceptable in drainage terms, subject to these conditions and complies with EH7 of the 

WOLP. 

 

Contamination  

 

5.52 The Council’s Contamination Officers have reviewed the application and raised no objection in 

principle. However, due to the presence of uneven ground and historic use of the site as an 

allotment, there is potential for ground contamination. To ensure the land is suitable for residential 

use, a phased contamination condition is recommended, requiring a desk study, site investigation (if 

necessary), and remediation measures prior to development. This approach aligns with Policy EH8 of 

the West Oxfordshire Local Plan and Section 15 of the NPPF. 

 

Self Build  

 

5.53 The application has been applied for as a self-build dwelling, as such in order to secure this the 

applicants are required to enter into a legal agreement that requires them to inhabit the dwelling for 

a minimum period of 3 years. A Unilateral Undertaking has been submitted to and been reviewed by 

the LPA's Legal Department which is considered to be acceptable and complies with Policy H5.  

 

5.54 The Strategic Housing and Development Officer has confirmed that the proposal aligns with the 

definition of self-build under the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015. The applicants have 

commissioned the design and intend to occupy the dwelling, which supports the Council's obligations 

under the Act. The development will contribute to meeting local demand for self-build housing, as 

evidenced by the Council's register, which currently includes 365 individuals and 6 groups on Part 1, 

and 142 individuals on Part 2. The Council has identified 289 plots with planning consent that meet 

self/custom build criteria. 

Page 28



 

5.55 This proposal will assist in meeting the Council's statutory duties and is supported in principle, 

subject to the legal agreement securing compliance with the Act. 

 

Other Matters  

 

5.56 Hanborough Parish Council objects to the proposal, citing concerns over development outside the 

built-up area, lack of connection to the Market Garden, and absence of justification. They highlight 

cumulative impacts with the neighbouring application, potential traffic disruption, and reference a past 

appeal refusal for similar reasons. Without clear mitigating factors or operational ties, the Parish 

considers the application inappropriate and recommends refusal. 

 

Conclusion 

 

Planning Balance 

 

5.57 In accordance with paragraph 11(d) of the NPPF, and given the Council's current housing land 

supply shortfall, the presumption in favour of sustainable development applies. The proposal does not 

engage any policies that protect areas or assets of particular importance and is considered to comply 

with the relevant development plan policies. The benefits of the scheme, including the provision of a 

self-build dwelling, are considered to outweigh any limited adverse impacts most notably in the form 

of any possible short term landscape impacts. The proposal therefore represents sustainable 

development in accordance with the NPPF. 

 

5.58 The proposed development has been assessed against the relevant policies of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 and the National Planning Policy Framework (2024). The site is 

considered to adjoin the built-up area of Long Hanborough and benefits from an established use and 

access arrangement. The proposal represents a sustainable form of development, delivering a high-

quality self-build dwelling that contributes to local housing supply and aligns with the Council's 

obligations under the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 2015. 

 

5.59 The design, scale, and materials are appropriate to the local context, and the scheme incorporates 

meaningful ecological, arboricultural, and landscape enhancements. The development is not 

considered to result in harm to designated or non-designated heritage assets, nor does it adversely 

affect the setting of the Cotswolds National Landscape. 

 

5.60 The proposal is therefore recommended for approval, subject to the recommended conditions and 

legal agreement securing the self-build status. 

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

Page 29



REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. Before above ground building work commences, a schedule of materials (including samples) to 

be used in the elevations and roofs of the development shall be submitted to and approved in 

writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be constructed in the approved 

materials. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area.   

 

4. Notwithstanding details contained in the application, detailed specifications and drawings of all 

external windows and doors to include elevations of each complete assembly at a minimum 1:20 

scale and sections of each component at a minimum 1:5 scale and including details of all 

materials, finishes and colours shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority before that architectural feature is commissioned/erected on site. The 

development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the buildings reflects the established character of 

the area. 

 

5. The window and door frames shall be recessed a minimum distance of 75mm from the face of 

the building unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the architectural detailing of the building reflects the established character of 

the locality.   

 

6. That, prior to the commencement of development, a full surface water drainage scheme shall be 

submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include 

results of soakage tests carried out at the site to demonstrate the infiltration rate. Three tests 

should be carried out for each soakage pit as per BRE 365, with the lowest infiltration rate 

(expressed in m/s) used for design. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the 

approved details prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved. 

Development shall not take place until an exceedance flow routing plan for flows above the 1 in 

100 year + 40% CC event has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 

Authority. 

 

REASON: To ensure the proper provision for surface water drainage and/ or to ensure flooding is 

not exacerbated in the locality. 

 

7. No development shall take place until a desk study has been carried out to assess the nature 

and extent of any contamination, whether or not it originated on site. The report on this study 

must include a risk assessment of potential source-pathway-receptor linkages. If potential 

pollutant linkages are identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination 

must be carried out in accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall 

be made available to the local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant 

contamination is found during the site investigation, a Remediation Scheme specifying the 

measures to be taken to remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby 

permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before 

any development begins. 

 

Page 30



The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the works the 

developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority written confirmation that all works were 

completed in accordance with the agreed details. If, during the course of development, any 

contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional measures 

for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures.  

 

REASON: To ensure any contamination of the site is identified and appropriately remediated. 

 

8. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

9. No development shall be undertaken (including any site and/or vegetation clearance) until a 

Precautionary Method of Works (PMW) which contains full details of the measures outlined in 

section 5 of the Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (Ecoconsult, April 2025) and Appendix 3 of the 

Arboricultural Survey and Impact Assessment (ACAC, April 2025) associated with the planning 

application has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The 

PMW shall include consideration of the following:  

 

• Retained tree and hedgerow protection measures in accordance with BS5837:2012;  

• Measures to avoid impacts to individual reptiles and amphibians;  

• Measures to avoid impacts to nesting birds;  

• Measures to avoid indirect impacts to foraging and commuting bats with adherence to a 

sensitive lighting scheme; and  

• Measures to avoid impacts to individual hedgehogs.  

 

The approved PMW shall be adhered to and implemented throughout the construction period 

in accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To avoid an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 and with consideration 

for Species of Principal Importance under the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 

2006. 

 

10. Prior to any works above slab level, a Biodiversity Enhancement Plan (BEP) shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The plan shall include full details of 

biodiversity enhancements as outlined in the Proposed Site Plan Revision C (Oakwrights, March 

2025) with full make and model information for bat, bird and bee bricks and a full planting 

schedule for proposed native hedgerow planting. Integral bat, bird and bee features shall be 

visible in revised elevations drawings. The approved plan shall be implemented as described and  

retained thereafter.  

 

REASON: To deliver biodiversity gains in accordance with paragraph 187 of the NPPF 2024 and 

local policy EH3. 

 

Page 31



11. Prior to first use of the development hereby approved, photographic evidence of the 

implementation of the approved biodiversity enhancement measures as required by condition 10 

(the BEP condition) shall be submitted to the local planning authority for approval. The 

approved details shall be thereafter retained.  

 

REASON: To deliver biodiversity gains in accordance with paragraph 187 of the NPPF 2024 and 

local policy EH3. 

 

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification), no development permitted under Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A, AA, B, 

C, D and E shall be carried out other than that expressly authorised by this permission. 

 

REASON: Control is needed to protect the character and appearance of the area. 

 

13. No dwelling hereby approved shall be occupied until the means to ensure a maximum water 

consumption of 110 litres use per person per day, in accordance with policy OS3, has been 

complied with for that dwelling and retained in perpetuity thereafter. 

 

REASON: To improve the sustainability of the dwellings in accordance with policy OS3 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

1. This consent is subject to a legal agreement (unilateral undertaking) submitted in support of the 

application. 

 

2. IMPORTANT: the statutory Biodiversity Gain Plan deemed planning condition does NOT apply to 

this planning permission. The effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990 is that planning permission granted for development of land in England is deemed 

to have been granted subject to the condition (biodiversity gain condition) that development may 

not begin unless a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and the 

planning authority has approved the plan. There are statutory exemptions and transitional 

arrangements which mean that the biodiversity gain condition does not always apply. Based on the 

information available, this permission is considered to be one which will not require the approval of 

a biodiversity gain plan before development is begun because the permission which has been 

granted is for development which is exempt being: Self and Custom Build Development, meaning 

development which: i. consists of no more than 9 dwellings; ii. is carried out on a site which has an 

area no larger than 0.5 hectares; and iii. consists exclusively of dwellings which are self-build or 

custom housebuilding (as defined in section 1(A1) of the Self-build and Custom Housebuilding Act 

2015). If a protected species (such as any bat, great crested newt, dormouse, badger, reptile, barn 

owl or any nesting bird) is discovered using a feature on site that would be affected by the 

development or related works all activity which might affect the species at the locality should cease. 

If the discovery can be dealt with satisfactorily by the implementation of biodiversity mitigation 

measures that have already been drawn up by your ecological advisor and approved by the Local 

Planning Authority, then these should be implemented. Otherwise, a suitably experienced ecologist 

should be contacted and the situation assessed before works can proceed. This action is necessary 

to avoid possible prosecution and ensure compliance with the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 (as 

amended), the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended), the Protection 

of Badgers Act 1992 and the Wild Mammals Act 1996. This advice note should be passed on to any 

Page 32



persons or contractors carrying out the development/works. Guidance on lighting issues in relation 

to bats can be found in the Bat Conservation Trusts Guidance Note 08/23 Bats and artificial lighting 

at night: Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial Lighting | Institution of Lighting Professionals 

 

 

Contact Officer: Mr Emile Baldauf-Clark 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 3rd September 2025 

Page 33



 

Application Number 25/01315/FUL 
Site Address Storage Land  

Horseshoe Lane 

Chadlington 

Oxfordshire 

OX7 3NB 

Date 3rd September 2025 

Officer Mr Emile Baldauf-Clark 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Chadlington Parish Council 

Grid Reference 432867 E       221645 N 

Committee Date 15th September 2025 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of 2 commercial buildings for mixed use classes B2/B8/E(g). Provision of car parking, cycle 

parking and landscaping. Erection of security entrance gate. 

 

Page 34



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr Gavin Aldworth 

C/o Agent 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

District Ecologist Sufficient information provided, condition/informative wording 

recommended.  
 

OCC Highways Recommendations 

 

Oxfordshire County Council, as the Local Highways Authority, 

hereby notify the District Planning Authority that they do not object 

to the granting of planning permission, subject to the following 

conditions: 

 

Conditions 

 

• G28 parking as plan. 

• G32 turning facility 

 

Comments 

 

The proposal, if permitted, will not have a significant detrimental 

impact (in terms of highway safety) on the adjacent highway network 

The existing use has the potential to generate numbers of daily 

movements of HGV vehicles on the local highway network and 

through the village of Chadlington. The proposal whilst increasing the 

number of car trips will reduce the number of HGV's accessing the 

site.  
 

Economic Development 

Manager 

The proposed development would support Chadlington’s rural 

economy by providing small-scale employment space in line with 

Local Plan objectives for sustainable growth and diversification. 

  

 

Env Health Contamination No objections in principle to the application. However, the site 

appears to have been used as a haulage and storage yard for the past 

~20 years. The storage of vehicles and machinery, as well as any 

maintenance work carried out on such vehicles, may have led to fuel, 

general oils/lubricants etc being lost to the ground. Contamination of 

the land could have occurred over a prolonged period of time. 

Additionally, it is unclear whether materials have been imported to 

the site for landscaping and levelling purposes. These materials may 

have included elevated levels of waste material soil contaminants.  

Therefore, the following condition is recommended so as to ensure 

that the land is suitable for the proposed use. 

 

Parish Council No Comment Received.  

Page 35



 

District Ecologist Sufficient information provided, condition and informative wording 

recommended.  
 

 2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 Nine objection comments have been received on this application. The responses raise a number of 

consistent concerns, which can be summarised under the following themes: 

 

• Impact on the Cotswolds AONB and landscape character: Many objectors highlight the 

site's location within the Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and outside the village 

boundary. Comments describe the proposal as "creating an industrial landscape as the 

welcome to the village" and "visible from key viewpoints," with concerns that it would 

"erode the village edge" and "set a precedent for further development in open 

countryside." 

• Ecological harm and biodiversity loss: Several responses refer to the removal of 

hedgerows and trees prior to the application, with one noting "active signs of wildlife" 

and another referencing "badger sets and barn owl habitat." There is concern that the 

development would disrupt biodiversity corridors and local ecosystems. 

• Light pollution: The introduction of artificial lighting, particularly security lights, is a 

recurring issue. Objectors describe the area as having "naturally dark skies" and fear that 

lighting will "cause night-time disturbance" and "degrade the rural tranquillity." 

• Traffic and highways concerns: Increased vehicle movements, especially involving large 

vehicles, are seen as inappropriate for the narrow village roads. One comment notes 

that "Chadlington has already been disrupted by a tourist attraction," and others suggest 

the site is "not suitable for large lorries." 

• Lack of local benefit and unclear business case: Multiple objections question whether the 

development would provide employment for local residents, with one stating "there is 

no evidence that Chadlington itself will benefit in any way." Others express concern 

about the unspecified nature of future occupants and uses. 

• Design and scale: The proposed buildings are described as "too tall" and "not 

sympathetic to the local character," with calls for better screening and reduced roof 

heights to mitigate visual impact. 

• Noise and operational hours: Some objectors request restrictions on hours of 

operation to preserve the tranquillity of the area, suggesting limits such as 7am-7pm 

weekdays. 

 

2.2 Ten support comments have been received on this application. The responses broadly welcome the 

proposal and highlight several recurring themes: 

 

• Support for local employment and business growth: Many comments emphasise the 

need for more small business units in the area, with one stating "we struggle to find 

suitable premises for our business" and another noting that the development "will bring 

new opportunities to anyone looking to start a small business." Several respondents see 

the proposal as a way to "support the rural economy" and "provide much needed local 

job opportunities." 

• Positive precedent from similar developments: Multiple supporters refer to the 

applicant's previous work at Long Compton, describing it as "a tidy, clean, secure and 

presentable facility" and "a great success." There is confidence that the Chadlington site 

Page 36



will be developed to a similar standard, with one comment noting "if the same care and 

attention is taken... it will not only look great... but add jobs for local people." 

• Improvement to the site and village entrance: Several comments mention the current 

condition of the site and welcome its transformation. One describes it as "run down 

industrial land" being turned into "something smart for the community," while another 

notes that landscaping will "improve the Catsum Lane approach to the village." 

• Design and compatibility with the area: Supporters generally feel the proposed buildings 

are appropriate in scale and design, with one stating they are "sympathetically built to 

suit the area" and another suggesting the site "is very much in keeping with the local 

area." 

• Potential for specific uses: One comment expresses enthusiasm for a "cycle-based 

service shop," citing the popularity of cycling routes in and around Chadlington. 

 

3 APPLICANT'S CASE 

 

3.1 The proposal at hand is supported in its' principle by a raft of both national and local planning 

policies. 

 

3.2 It provides the opportunity for a markedly improved employment offer on the site and a more 

efficient reuse of an existing, previously developed commercial site, and which previously had 

planning permission in place too for a similar proposal only a few years ago. 

 

3.3 It is all kept relatively low-scale and modest and remains contained within the existing site 

parameters. 

 

3.4 Visually, the proposed scheme for the site offers a positive opportunity to improve the appearance 

of the site itself and its relationship to the wider surrounding context. 

 

3.5 There are no objections to the scheme from any of the statutory consultees - none from highways, 

none from ecology, none from environmental health, none at all. 

 

3.6 The Council's Economic Development Manager positively supports the proposal. 

 

3.7 The scheme is a defined form of sustainable development, delivering a rural business opportunity, 

the like of which does not come forwards very often and it is hoped that the proposal will be viewed 

and considered in the positive fashion in which it is made. 

 

3.8 Government advice requires local planning authorities to apply its policies in the determination of 

planning applications, in a flexible way, in order to encourage development, particularly so in rural 

areas. This proposal is just the sort of development this up to date advice contemplates. 

 

3.9 In light of all of the foregoing, it is respectfully requested that the Council grant the planning 

permission herein applied for. 

 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

OS2NEW Locating development in the right places 

OS4NEW High quality design 

E1NEW Land for employment 

E2NEW Supporting the rural economy 

Page 37



EH1 Cotswolds AONB 

EH3 Biodiversity and Geodiversity 

EH8 Environmental protection 

T4NEW Parking provision 

NPPF 2024 

DESGUI West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

NATDES National Design Guide 

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application seeks planning permission for the erection of two commercial buildings for mixed 

use classes B2/B8/E(g), provision of car parking, cycle parking and landscaping and the erection of a 

security entrance gate on storage land at Horseshoe Lane, Chadlington.  

 

5.2 The site relates to a plot of land located to the south of the main village of Chadlington which is 

permitted for the storage and parking of HGV vehicles and has had a previous permission for the 

erection of a garage workshop to be used for the repair and servicing of commercial HGV trucks, 

and domestic cars and vans previously approved.  

 

5.3 The site falls within the Cotswolds National Landscape (CNL), formerly known as the Cotswolds 

Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty (AONB).  

 

5.4 The application is before members as the Parish Council's views are clearly contrary to your 

Officers.  

 

Relevant Planning History 

 

5.5 20/02104/FUL - Erection of a garage workshop (amended plans) - Approved  

 

5.6 21/03868/S73 - Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 20/02104/FUL to increase size of 

building and to allow changes to doors and fenestration, and provision of first floor office, kitchen 

and WC facilities. - Approved  

 

5.7 Although the consents referenced above (20/02104/FUL and 21/03868/S73) were not implemented 

and have now lapsed, their approval nonetheless establishes a precedent for the acceptability of 

redevelopment on this site. These permissions reflect a clear planning endorsement of the principle 

of improved commercial uses, and as such, they continue to carry some material weight in the 

assessment of future proposals and this context should be considered in evaluating the merits of any 

subsequent applications.  

 

5.8 Taking into account planning policy, other material considerations and the representations of 

interested parties your officers are of the opinion that the key considerations of the application are: 

 

• Principle of development 

• Sitting, Design and Form 

• Impact on CNL 

• Highways Impacts 

Page 38



• Ecology Impacts 

• Contamination  

• Residential Amenity  

• Other Matters 

 

Principle 

 

5.9 The principle of development is considered to be acceptable and is supported by both national and 

local planning policy, specifically Policies E1 and E2 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

 

5.10 Policy E1 (Land for Employment) supports proposals that enhance the operational effectiveness of 

existing employment sites, provided they are proportionate to the scale of the settlement and 

compatible with the character of the surrounding area. Policy E2 (Supporting the Rural Economy) 

similarly supports employment development in or adjacent to rural settlements such as Chadlington, 

where proposals are appropriately scaled and sensitively designed. The policy further allows for new 

and replacement buildings outside settlement boundaries where a specific business need is 

demonstrated, and where such development cannot reasonably be accommodated in a more 

sustainable location. In such cases, proposals must be suitably located in relation to the scale and 

nature of the intended use, and must take into account accessibility to settlements, facilities and 

services, as well as the potential impact on local character and residential amenity. 

 

5.11 The application site is located immediately south of Chadlington and benefits from an established 

commercial use, specifically for the storage and parking of HGV vehicles. Previous planning 

permissions (Refs: 20/02104/FUL and 21/03868/S73) for the erection of a garage workshop on the 

site, although now lapsed, provide a clear precedent for the acceptability of improved commercial 

development in this location. These consents remain material considerations and reflect a consistent 

planning endorsement of the site's suitability for employment-related development. 

 

5.12 The current proposal seeks to erect two commercial buildings for mixed-use purposes (Classes B2, 

B8 and E(g)), together with associated parking, landscaping and security infrastructure. The 

development is intended to support and enhance the operational efficiency of the existing business. 

Given the nature of the business and the scale of vehicles involved, the site's location outside the 

main residential area of Chadlington is considered appropriate and preferable. The proposed 

buildings are modest in scale, contained within the existing site boundaries, and represent a logical 

and proportionate intensification of the established use. 

 

5.13 From an economic perspective, the Council's Economic Development Officer has expressed 

support for the proposal, noting that it represents a valuable opportunity to strengthen the local 

economy. The development is expected to generate employment across a range of skill levels, 

supporting both skilled trades and administrative roles. It will also encourage business growth and 

diversification, particularly for small and medium-sized enterprises (SMEs) seeking flexible space in a 

rural yet accessible location. Furthermore, the scheme has the potential to enhance local supply 

chains by providing space for logistics, light manufacturing, and professional services that can serve 

both Chadlington and the wider West Oxfordshire area. 

 

5.14 The proposal aligns with several strategic objectives of the Local Plan 2031, including policies E1 

and E2, which seeks to support sustainable economic growth and improve employment opportunities 

through the provision of appropriate business premises. It also accords with Policy OS2 (Locating 

Development in the Right Places), which supports development in rural service centres and villages 

where it is of an appropriate scale and contributes positively to the local economy. 

Page 39



 

5.15 In view of the above, and having regard to the relevant planning history, adopted policy framework, 

and the specific operational and economic benefits of the proposal, officers are satisfied that the 

principle of development is sound, policy-compliant, and capable of delivering meaningful economic 

benefits to the local area. 

 

Siting, Design and Form 

 

5.16 The proposal seeks to erect two separate buildings on the site, one along the front western 

boundary (building 1) with the second being located further in the site adjacent to the existing 

planting along the eastern boundary (building 2). 

 

5.17 Building 1 is to comprise a single unit and is to have a traditional agricultural design with a pitched 

roof. The building is to measure approx. 12.2 x 18.3 metres with a maximum height of 6.6 metres 

and eaves height of 5 metres. The walls of the building are to comprise a mixture of reconstitution 

stone and Jupiter Green Cladding under an anthracite cladded roof. Rooflights are proposed on both 

roof slopes with the front to include 2 anthracite roller doors with two single access doors.  

 

5.18 Building 2 also comprising two units and is to have a more modern design with a curved Dutch 

barn style roof. The building is to measure approx. 12.2 x 18.3 metres with a maximum height of 6.7 

metres and eaves height of just over 5 metres. The walls are to be constructed of a mixture of 

reconstructed stone and Jupiter Green Cladding under an anthracite cladded roof. The side 

elevations are each to include four full height glass windows with the front elevation to include 2 

anthracite roller doors with two single access doors. 

 

5.19 A new automated sliding metal security gate is proposed on the existing access to the site to 

replace the existing metal sliding security gate. The new gates are proposed to have a height of 

approx. 2.4 metres.  

 

5.20 Within the site a total of 16 parking spaces with EV charging are also proposed along with 6 cycle 

parking spaces. An area of amenity space is proposed to the south of Building 2 as well as a stepped 

access to access the higher ground level to the rear of the site. An internal 1metre high timber post 

and rail fence and perimeter hedging to the site boundary is proposed along with silver birch tree 

planting.  

 

5.21 Your officers are of the opinion that the proposed development has been carefully designed to 

respond to the rural character and context of the site, in accordance with the principles set out in 

Policies OS2 and OS4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan. The siting of the two buildings, one 

positioned along the western boundary and the other set further into the site adjacent to existing 

planting, ensures a layout that respects the surrounding landscape and maintains a sense of openness. 

 

5.22 Building 1 adopts a traditional agricultural form with a pitched roof and materials such as 

reconstituted stone and Jupiter Green cladding, which are sympathetic to the local vernacular and 

the commercial context of the site. Building 2 introduces a more contemporary interpretation with a 

Dutch barn-style curved roof and full-height glazing, offering visual interest while maintaining 

coherence through the use of matching materials. 

 

5.23 The proposed layout includes appropriate boundary treatments, landscaping, and amenity space, 

contributing positively to the overall setting. The inclusion of EV charging points, cycle parking, and a 

secure access gate further supports the functionality and sustainability of the scheme. 

Page 40



 

5.24 Overall, the siting, design, and form of the development are considered acceptable and appropriate 

for this rural location, achieving a high standard of design that respects and enhances the character of 

the area in line with Local Plan objectives. 

 

Impact on the Cotswolds National Landscape   

 

5.25 The NPPF requires great weight to be given to conserving and enhancing landscape beauty in 

National Landscapes. Policy EH1 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 also seeks to give great 

weight to conserving the landscape and scenic beauty. The site falls within the 'Semi-enclosed 

Limestone Wolds - large scale within the wider Lower Evenlode Valley' Character Area as per the 

West Oxfordshire Landscape Assessment 1998 (WOLA).  

 

5.26 The Lower Evenlode Valley Character Area is described as a gently sloping, semi-enclosed pastoral 

landscape with a distinctive riparian character, defined by its wide floodplain, meandering river, and 

intimate visual relationship with surrounding valley sides and settlements. The semi-enclosed 

Limestone Wolds - large scale character area is described as being a smoothly rolling, elevated 

limestone plateau dominated by large-scale arable farmland, dry-stone walls, sparse vegetation, and 

moderate intervisibility, with some visual containment from woodland blocks creating a semi-

enclosed, expansive upland character. 

 

5.27 The proposed development comprises two commercial buildings for mixed-use purposes (Classes 

B2, B8 and E(g)), along with associated car and cycle parking, landscaping, and a security entrance 

gate. While the introduction of built form within the CNL must be carefully considered, the site is 

already in commercial use and is visually contained by established boundary planting and topography. 

 

5.28 The buildings are proposed to be of a functional design, with external materials selected to 

minimise visual intrusion, including muted tones and finishes that respond to the rural context and 

give it an agricultural type of appearance which would not be uncommon for this edge of settlement 

location. The layout positions the building to the front and rear of the site, with landscaping and 

parking areas designed to soften the development's edge and reduce its prominence from public 

viewpoints. 

 

5.29 Given the existing use of the site, its enclosed nature, and the design measures proposed, it is 

considered that the development would not result in any material harm to the character or scenic 

beauty of the Cotswolds NL. The proposal is therefore considered to comply with national and local 

policy EH1 requirements relating to landscape protection. 

 

5.30 To further safeguard the landscape character, a condition is recommended to control external 

lighting, ensuring that any future installations are subject to prior approval by the Local Planning 

Authority. This will help preserve the area's dark skies and rural tranquillity.  

 

 

Highways Impacts 

 

5.31 Oxfordshire County Council Highways Officers have been consulted as part of this application and 

have raised no objections to the proposal subject to conditions requiring the provision of parking and 

turning areas to be in accordance with the submitted plans 

 

Page 41



5.32 The submitted Transport Statement (HVJ Transport Ltd, May 2025) provides a detailed assessment 

of the proposed development's impact on the local highway network. The site has historically 

operated as a base for HGV parking and maintenance, generating daily movements of large vehicles 

through the village of Chadlington and along Horseshoe Lane.  

 

5.33 The proposed development would replace the HGV use with two commercial buildings for mixed-

use (Classes B2, B8, and E(g)), resulting in a shift from HGV movements to predominantly passenger 

car trips. While the overall number of daily vehicle movements is expected to increase (from 

approximately 5 to 30-33 trips), the nature of those trips will be significantly less impactful in terms 

of highway safety. 

 

5.34 Swept path analysis confirms that delivery and waste vehicles can enter and exit the site in a 

forward gear, and the upgraded access will meet OCC standards, including improved surfacing and 

drainage. Visibility splays in both directions are considered acceptable, and the removal of slow-

moving HGVs from the access will improve safety for all road users. 

 

5.35 The Transport Statement concludes that the proposed development will not result in any significant 

adverse impact on highway safety or capacity. This is supported by OCC Highways, who note that 

the scheme will reduce HGV traffic and is therefore likely to result in a net improvement in safety 

conditions on the local highway network ands as such the proposal is considered acceptable in regard 

to Policies T2 and T4 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan.  

 

Ecology Impacts  

 

5.36 Under the Environment Act 2021 and the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended), all 

planning applications in England (with limited exemptions) are required to demonstrate a minimum 

10% net gain in biodiversity. This statutory requirement came into effect on 2 April 2024 and must 

be evidenced using the Statutory Biodiversity Metric prior to the commencement of development. 

 

5.37 The submitted Ecological Impact Assessment and Biodiversity Net Gain Assessment (Windrush 

Ecology, March 2025) identifies a baseline biodiversity value of 1.12 habitat units across the 0.3ha site, 

comprising developed land and bare ground (0.17ha), woodland and trees (0.05ha), and scrub/ruderal 

ephemeral vegetation (0.08ha). The proposed development would result in the loss of scrub and bare 

ground, with woodland retained and enhanced. New grassland, scrub, and tree/hedgerow planting are 

proposed, delivering a 4.1% net gain. To meet the statutory 10% requirement, the applicant proposes 

to purchase additional units from a habitat bank to offset the remaining deficit of 0.07 habitat units. 

 

5.38 The Biodiversity Officer has confirmed that, while the site has undergone recent vegetation 

clearance, the baseline assessment is considered a fair representation of the site's condition. 

 

5.39 The submitted Ecological Impact Assessment does not recommend further protected species 

surveys and considers the site unsuitable for protected/priority species other than nesting birds and 

hedgehogs. However, anecdotal evidence suggests the presence of a badger sett onsite. The 

Biodiversity Officer has advised that the Ecological Impact Assessment should be revised to consider 

this evidence, and that a pre-commencement walkover survey should be undertaken by a suitably 

qualified ecologist. Should a sett be confirmed, a licence may be required for works within 

approximately 30m. 

 

5.40 The Biodiversity Officer has recommended conditions requiring a Landscape and Ecological 

Management Plan (LEMP), a Precautionary Working Method Statement (PWMS), and sensitive 

Page 42



lighting measures to protect retained habitats and species. These conditions are considered 

necessary to ensure compliance with Local Plan Policy EH3, the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2024), and relevant legislation including the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 

and the Protection of Badgers Act 1992. 

 

5.41 As such the proposal is considered acceptable in this regard and complies with Policy EH3 of the 

WOLP.  

 

Contamination 

 

5.42 The councils Environmental Health -Contamination Officer has reviewed the application and raised 

no objection in principle. However, it is noted that the site has operated as a haulage and storage 

yard for approximately 20 years. The long-term presence of vehicles and machinery, and any 

associated maintenance activities, may have resulted in the release of fuels, oils, and lubricants into 

the ground. Additionally, there is uncertainty regarding the origin and quality of materials potentially 

imported for landscaping and levelling, which may contain elevated levels of contaminants. 

 

5.43 To ensure the site is suitable for the proposed commercial use, a condition is recommended 

requiring a phased contamination assessment.  This approach is considered necessary to ensure 

compliance with Local Plan Policy EH8 and Section 15 of the National Planning Policy Framework 

(2024), and to safeguard future site users and the wider environment. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

5.44 Section 12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2024) encourages the creation of places that 

are safe, inclusive, and accessible, and which promote health and wellbeing with a high standard of 

amenity for existing and future users. Given the nature of the proposed commercial development 

and its location, officers are of the opinion that the proposal would not give rise to any adverse 

impacts in regard to neighbouring amenity. The closest residential property lies approximately 150 

metres to the north of the application site, and as such, issues relating to overbearing, overlooking, 

loss of light or privacy are not considered to arise. 

 

Other Matters  

 

5.45 Chadlington Parish Council objects to the application. Key concerns include harm to the Cotswold 

National Landscape, potential light pollution, loss of biodiversity due to prior site clearance, 

inadequate screening, and inconsistencies in ecological reporting. The Council also requests 

restricted operating hours.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.46 In light of the above assessment, your officers are of the opinion that the proposed development 

would represent an appropriate and policy-compliant form of rural employment provision. The site 

benefits from an established commercial use and a clear precedent for redevelopment, with previous 

permissions supporting the principle of employment-related development in this location. 

 

5.47 The proposal has been designed to respond sensitively to its rural context, with building form, 

materials, and layout that reflect both traditional and contemporary agricultural styles. Subject to 

conditions, the scheme is not considered to result in significant harm to the character or scenic 

beauty of the Cotswolds National Landscape, nor to residential amenity or highway safety. 

Page 43



 

5.48 Ecological impacts have been addressed through detailed assessment and mitigation measures, 

including biodiversity net gain provisions and recommended conditions to safeguard protected 

species and habitats. The development is also expected to deliver economic benefits through the 

provision of flexible business space and support for local employment. 

 

5.49 Having regard to all of the material considerations, including the representations received, the 

application is considered to be acceptable and compliant with Policies OS2, OS4, E1, E2, EH1, EH3, 

EH8 and T4 of the adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031, the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016, the National Design Guide, and the relevant provisions of the National Planning Policy 

Framework. Approval is therefore recommended, subject to the conditions set out.  

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 as 

amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4. The premises shall be used for the uses specified in the application and for no other purpose 

(including any other purpose in The Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 (as 

amended) or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking and re-

enacting that Order with or without modification). 

 

REASON: The site is only suitable for the use specified because of the special circumstances of the site. 

 

5. The use shall not take place other than between the hours of: - 

 

6am - 8pm Mondays - Fridays 

 

8am - 1pm Saturdays 

 

Closed - Sundays and Bank Holidays. 

 

REASON: To safeguard the character and appearance of the area. 

 

6. Notwithstanding the submitted details and prior to first use, a 30-year Landscape and Ecological 

Management Plan (LEMP) shall be submitted to, and be approved in writing by, the local planning 

Page 44



authority. The content of the LEMP shall accord with the details of the approved Biodiversity Gain 

Plan and shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, the following:  

 

i. Description and evaluation of features to be managed; 

ii.  Landscape and ecological trends and constraints on site that might influence management;  

iii. Aims and objectives of management (including those related to species);  

iv. Appropriate management options for achieving aims and objectives, including appropriate 

enhancement measures; v. Prescriptions for management actions;  

v. Preparation of a work schedule (including an annual work plan);  

vi. Details of the body or organisation responsible for implementation of the plan;  

vii. Legal and funding mechanism(s) by which the long-term implementation of the plan will be 

secured by the developer;  

viii. Ongoing monitoring and remedial measures, including how the details of monitoring will be 

made available to the local planning authority and who will be responsible for implementing 

and agreeing remedial measures;  

ix. Timeframe and process for reviewing the plan; and  

x. Details of how the aims and objectives of the LEMP will be communicated to the occupiers 

of the development.  

 

The plan shall also set out (where the results from monitoring show that conservation aims and 

objectives of the LEMP are not being met) how contingencies and/or remedial action will be 

identified, agreed and implemented so that the development still delivers the fully functioning 

biodiversity objectives of the originally approved scheme. The approved plan will be implemented in 

accordance with the approved details.  

 

REASON: To ensure the development delivers onsite biodiversity gains in accordance with Local Policy 

EH3, paragraphs 187, 192 and 193 of the NPPF 2024 and Schedule 7A of the Town and Country 

Planning Act 1990. 

 

7. No development shall take place (including vegetation/site clearance) until a Precautionary Working 

Method Statement (PWMS) for the protection of nesting birds, badgers (including a pre-

commencement site walkover by a suitably qualified ecologist), hedgehogs and retained 

hedgerows/trees has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The approved PWMS shall be implemented in full according to the specified timescales.  

 

REASON: To protect and enhance biodiversity in accordance with Local Plan Policy EH3, paragraphs 

187, 192 and 193 of the National Planning Policy Framework (December 2024), and in order for the 

Council to comply with Part 3 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006. 

 

8. Notwithstanding the submitted details, before works above slab level commence, details of external 

lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details 

shall clearly demonstrate that lighting will not cause excessive light pollution or spill into the onsite 

woodland or adjacent hedgerows. The details shall include the following:  

 

i. A drawing clearly showing light-sensitive habitats;  

ii. A technical description, design or specification of external lighting to be installed including 

shields, cowls or blinds where appropriate; 

iii.  A description of the luminosity of lights and their light colour;  

iv. A drawing showing the location and, where appropriate, elevation and height of the light 

fixings;  

Page 45



v. Methods to control lighting control (e.g. timer operation, passive infrared sensor [PIR]); and 

vi.  Lighting contour plans both horizontal and vertical where appropriate and taking into 

account hard landscaping, etc.  

 

All external/internal lighting shall be installed in accordance with the specifications and locations set 

out in the approved details. These shall be maintained thereafter in accordance with these details. 

Under no circumstances shall any other external lighting be installed.  

 

REASON: To limit the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity, intrinsically dark 

landscapes and nature conservation in accordance with paragraph 198 of the NPPF and Local Policy 

EH4. 

 

9. The car parking areas (including where appropriate the marking out of parking spaces) shown on 

the approved plans shall be constructed before occupation of the development and thereafter 

retained and used for no other purpose. 

 

REASON: To ensure that adequate car parking facilities are provided in the interests of road safety. 

 

10. No unit herby approved shall be occupied until space has been laid out within the curtilage of the 

site to enable vehicles to enter, turn round and leave the curtilage in forward gear. 

 

REASON: In the interest of road safety. 

 

11. No development shall take place until a desk study has been carried out to assess the nature and 

extent of any contamination, whether or not it originated on site. The report on this study must 

include a risk assessment of potential source-pathway-receptor linkages. If potential pollutant 

linkages are identified, a site investigation of the nature and extent of contamination must be carried 

out in accordance with a methodology which has previously been submitted to and approved in 

writing by the local planning authority. The results of the site investigation shall be made available to 

the local planning authority before any development begins. If any significant contamination is found 

during the site investigation, a Remediation Scheme specifying the measures to be taken to 

remediate the site to render it suitable for the development hereby permitted shall be submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any development begins. 

 

The Remediation Scheme, as agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be fully 

implemented in accordance with the approved timetable of works and before the development 

hereby permitted is first occupied. Any variation to the scheme shall be agreed in writing with the 

Local Planning Authority in advance of works being undertaken. On completion of the works the 

developer shall submit to the Local Planning Authority written confirmation that all works were 

completed in accordance with the agreed details. If, during the course of development, any 

contamination is found which has not been identified in the site investigation, additional measures 

for the remediation of this contamination shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local 

planning authority. The remediation of the site shall incorporate the approved additional measures.  

 

REASON: To ensure any contamination of the site is identified and appropriately remediated. 

 

 

Notes to applicant 

 

1. Important: the statutory Biodiversity Net Gain objective of 10% applies to this planning permission 

Page 46



and development cannot commence until a Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted (as a 

condition compliance application) to and approved by West Oxfordshire District Council. The 

effect of paragraph 13 of Schedule 7A to the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 is that planning 

permission granted for the development of land in England is deemed to have been granted subject 

to the condition "(the biodiversity gain condition") that development may not begin unless (a) a 

Biodiversity Gain Plan has been submitted to the planning authority, and (b) the planning authority 

has approved the plan. Advice about how to prepare a Biodiversity Gain Plan and a template can be 

found at https://www.gov.uk/guidance/submit-a-biodiversity-gain-plan. 

 

2. The applicant is made aware that, under the Protection of Badgers Act (1992) (as amended), it is 

illegal to kill, injure, take or cruelly ill-treat a badger, to damage, destroy or obstruct access to a 

badger sett, or to disturb a badger whilst it is occupying a sett. If any construction work requiring 

heavy machinery is required within 30 metres of a badger sett, lighter machinery within 20 metres 

or hand tools within 10 metres, a badger licence is likely to be required from Natural England. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Mr Emile Baldauf-Clark 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 3rd September 2025 

Page 47



 

Application Number 25/01834/HHD 
Site Address 29 Oxford Road 

Woodstock 

Oxfordshire 

OX20 1UN 

Date 3rd September 2025 

Officer Nathan Harris 

Officer Recommendations Approve 

Parish Woodstock Parish Council 

Grid Reference 444949 E       216510 N 

Committee Date 15th September 2025 

 

Location Map 

 

 
 

 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2016 Ordnance Survey 100024316  
 

 

Application Details: 

 

Erection of single and two storey rear extensions 

 

 

 

Page 48



Applicant Details: 

 

Mr & Mrs Whitfield 

29 Oxford Road 

Woodstock 

Oxfordshire 

OX20 1UN 

 

1 CONSULTATIONS 

 

WODC Tree Officer It does not appear that the footprint will have any impact from the 

information provided. 

I would only highlight that the Cedar tree in the neighbours (no.31) 

property is subject to a TPO and a Root protection area should be in 

place (no dig etc).  
 

Town Council  No Comment Received.  
 

2 REPRESENTATIONS 

 

2.1 One detailed third-party objection response has been received from a neighbouring property. This 

can be viewed in full online on the Council's website. The key points raised relate to the following 

matters:  

 

• Effect on local ecology 

• Design and layout 

• Highways 

• Landscape 

• Neighbourliness 

• Policy / Principle 

 

3 APPLICANTS CASE 

 

3.1 The submitted Design and Access Statement is concluded as follows:  

 

'The scheme presents a balanced and sensitive approach to the extension and modernization of this 

family home, through the provision of additional accommodation within an established and 

sustainable location. The proposed works will provide good quality internal accommodation for 

future occupants with principle living spaces benefiting from natural daylighting and ventilation, and a 

pleasant outlook and connection with external amenity spaces. The proposals will complement and 

enhance the character of the host dwelling and it's setting, providing a high-quality design with 

regards to form, function, detailing and materials. The design will continue the use of sustainable 

construction methods and features to enable the property to retain its A+ EPC rating. All existing 

boundary conditions will be preserved and the proposed extension made subservient to the existing 

dwelling through appropriate scale, massing and being set back from its nearest boundary to respect 

the relationship with adjacent property. The proposal presents a carefully considered scheme that 

will assist the local authority's commitments to improve the quality of housing stock. As such it is 

envisaged that the proposed scheme can be fully supported, and the permission applied for granted.' 

 

 

Page 49



 

4 PLANNING POLICIES 

 

  

The National Planning Policy framework (NPPF) is also a material planning consideration.  

 

5 PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

 

Background Information 

 

5.1 This application seeks consent for the erection of a single storey and first floor extension to the rear 

of 29 Oxford Road, Woodstock. The application site relates to a large, detached, rendered property 

sited within the built-up residential area of Woodstock. 

 

5.2 The application site does not fall within any areas of special designated control, although it is 

adjacent to the Woodstock Conservation Area to the west and does sit within the Woodstock 

Neighbourhood Plan Area.  

 

5.3 The site located along Oxford Road and is set back from the main road through Woodstock, which 

is screened by a line of mature trees limiting the public views of the property from this road.  

 

5.4 The property sits adjacent to the boundary wall of the Blenheim Palace grounds, which is a World 

Heritage site and designated Park and Garden. The wall itself is also Grade II listed. 

 

5.5 This application is brought before Members of the Uplands Area Planning Sub-Committee for 

consideration at the request of a local ward member in accordance with the Council's Constitution.  

 

Planning History 

 

5.6 22/00400/HHD - Proposed single storey side extension, internal and external alterations including 

amendments to external finishes. (Approved) 

 

5.7 22/00931/HHD - Proposed detached double garage (Withdrawn) 

 

5.8 22/01062/CND - Discharge of condition 4 (parking car/cycle plan) of planning permission 

22/00400/HHD (Approved) 

 

5.9 25/01211/HHD - Proposed first floor rear extension (Withdrawn) 

 

Planning Assessment 

 

5.10 Taking into account planning policy, history, other material considerations and the representations 

of interested parties, officers are of the opinion that the key considerations in the assessment of this 

application are: 

 

• -Principle 

• -Siting, Design, Form and Impact on the character of the area 

• -Impact on the protected trees 

• -Impact upon heritage assets 

• -Neighbourliness 

Page 50



• -Other matters 

 

Principle 

 

5.11 Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires applications for planning 

permission be determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations 

indicate otherwise. Section 70 (2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 provides that the 

Local Planning Authority (LPA) shall have regard to the provisions of the development plan, so far as 

material to the application, and to any other material considerations. In this case the development 

plan is the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031 (WOLP) and the Woodstock Neighbourhood Plan 

2031 (WNP), which forms part of the statutory development plan for the area. 

 

5.12 The proposed single storey and first floor extensions are to be located within the residential 

curtilage of 29 Oxford Road, Woodstock. Therefore, the principle of development is considered 

acceptable subject to design, heritage and amenity issues being carefully considered against the 

adopted West Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031. 

  

Siting, Design, Form and Impact on the character of the area 

 

5.13 WOLP Policy OS2 states that "All development should forma logical complement to the existing 

scale and pattern of development and/or the character of the area".  WOLP Policy OS4 states that 

new development should respect the historic, architectural and landscape character of the locality. 

Section 12 of the revised NPPF reinforces the fundamental nature of good design to sustainable 

development and states that 'good design is a key aspect of sustainable development' (Para. 131) and 

'development that is not well designed should be refused, especially where it fails to reflect local 

design policies' (Para. 139). 

 

5.14 The proposal seeks to erect a first-floor extension over the existing rear extension on the 

northeastern elevation of the property. The proposed extension will comprise a cross-gable design 

that will project into the rear garden by approximately 6.3 metres which matches the footprint of the 

existing ground floor element. The existing ground floor element will see a modest increase to the 

west to incorporate the first-floor extension that will be align with the rear elevation of the main 

element of the existing property. The proposed extension will have a ridge height of 6.8 metres with 

an eave's height of 4.5 metres, both of which are set down from the heights of the existing building. 

The rear elevation will be predominantly glazed with aluminium framed glazing, with the inclusion of 

an aluminium panel to break up the elevation. The proposal will also include a new rooflight on each 

roof slope of the new cross gable, whilst being constructed in materials to match the existing 

property with rendered external walls and a tiled roof covering.  

 

5.15 Further works proposed will see the addition of a single storey extension to the northwestern end 

of the rear elevation. This extension will project into the rear garden by a modest 1.5 metres and will 

span along the rear elevation from the existing extension towards the corner of the property albeit 

set in marginally. The proposal will be a flat roof design with an overall height of 3.2 metres which 

will sit below the existing Juliet balcony which will also see the addition of a first-floor window 

adjacent. 

 

5.16 With regard to the design, while the extension is relatively large in scale, your officers are of the 

opinion that the additions, due to the overall ridge and eave height being sufficiently lower than the 

existing property, the proposed footprint and scale of the original house, would read clearly as a 

secondary and subservient to the host dwelling, whilst the use of matching materials is considered 

Page 51



acceptable. The proposed design is therefore considered to demonstrate high quality design in 

accordance with the requirements of WOLP Policy OS4 and Section 12 of the NPPF. Only the 

northeastern elevation would be partially visible from the street scene due to the orientation of the 

neighbouring property to the east. However, due to the appropriate design and choice of materials 

that match the existing house and neighbouring property, your officers consider that the proposal 

will not create any adverse impacts in regards the visual amenity of the character of the area. The 

application is therefore considered acceptable in terms of siting, scale and appearance. 

 

Impact on the protected trees 

 

5.17 The proposed development is sited within close proximity to a number of protected trees- one to 

the front of the property and two to the front of the neighbouring property to the west. The LPA's 

Tree Officer has been consulted on this matter to assess the potential impact of the development 

(including the construction phase) on the protected trees and has raised no objections, subject to a 

condition to ensure no works are carried out within the root protection area of any protected trees. 

Officers are satisfied that due to the siting of the proposal, the sufficient separation distance from the 

protected trees and the modest increase in footprint, the impact on the protected trees will be 

minimal and therefore the proposal is acceptable in this regard.   

 

Impact on Heritage Assets 

 

5.18 As the site is located adjacent to the Conservation Area and in close proximity to the WHS 

Blenheim Palace and its listed boundary wall, Officers are required to take account of section 66 of 

the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended which states that in 

considering whether to grant planning permission for any works the local planning authority shall 

have special regard for the desirability of preserving the building, its setting and any features of special 

architectural or historic interest which it possesses. Further, officers are required to consider section 

72(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as amended, which states 

that, with respect to buildings or other land in a Conservation Area, special attention shall be paid to 

the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of that area.  

 

5.19 In this case, by virtue of the seperation distances between the site and the nearby heritage assets, 

the appropriate design of the proposed development, and the residential context of the site, your 

officers are satisfied that the setting of the heritage assets (which include the grade II listed, Blenheim 

Wall, the WHS and registered park and gardens, and the Conservation Area) would be conserved.  

 

Neighbourliness 

 

5.20 WOLP Policy OS2 states that development should be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to 

its context having regard to the potential cumulative impact of development in the locality. It further 

states that development should be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a harmful impact on 

the amenity of existing occupants. 

 

5.21 Whilst the first-floor extension would be adjacent to the side elevation of the neighbouring 

property, 31 Oxford Road, given that the proposed development would not project beyond the rear 

elevation of No.31, that it is sufficiently set in from the boundary, and the differing orientation of the 

properties, officers are of the opinion that the extension would not be adversely overbearing, nor 

would it result in any undue loss of light or privacy to the detriment of the neighbours. Your officers 

note that there are no first floor windows in the side elevation of No.31 facing the proposed 

development that would be affected. There are a couple of small windows at ground floor level 

Page 52



adjacent to the side door but these face towards the existing ground floor projection. Further, your 

officers understand that these ground floor windows serve a hallway and a games room which are 

not considered to be habitable rooms.  

 

5.22 In regards the neighbourly impacts to the properties to the north, it's your officer's opinion that 

due to the existing rear elevation already comprising first floor windows and the significant 

separation distances to the properties to the north, no additional adverse impacts will result in the 

proposal.  

 

5.23 The first-floor element is set away from the neighbouring property to the west, with no first-floor 

windows on the side facing elevation with only a modest increase in footprint resulting from the 

single storey element, its your officer's opinion that the proposed works will not result in any 

adverse impacts on the neighbouring property to the west. Your officers have recommended the 

imposition of a condition to remove PD rights for any new first floor side windows to ensure the 

LPA have control over any future openings so proper consideration can be given to the impact on 

neighbours.  

 

5.24 Your officers note that one of the bedrooms is served by a Juliet balcony that opens out onto the 

flat roof of the proposed ground floor extension. The use of the flat roof area as a balcony could 

result in a loss of privacy to the detriment of neighbours. As such, a condition has been imposed to 

ensure, for the avoidance of doubt, that this roof is not used as a balcony.  

 

Other Matters 

 

5.25 The Local Planning Authority consider that the mandatory requirement of 10% Biodiversity Net 

Gain is not required for this proposal as submitted as householder development is exempt.  

 

Conclusion 

 

5.26 In light of the above assessment, the application is considered to accord with West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031 Policies OS2, OS4, H6, EH9, EH10 and EH11 of the West Oxfordshire Design Guide 

2016, the relevant paragraphs of the NPPF and the Woodstock Neighbourhood Plan. The application 

is therefore recommended for approval.  

 

6 CONDITIONS 

 

 

1. The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years from the 

date of this permission. 

 

REASON: To comply with the requirements of Section 91 of the Town & Country Planning Act 

1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act, 2004. 

 

2. That the development be carried out in accordance with the approved plans listed below. 

 

REASON: For the avoidance of doubt as to what is permitted. 

 

3. The development shall be constructed with the materials specified in the application. 

 

Page 53



REASON: To ensure that the development is in keeping with the locality and for the avoidance of 

doubt as to what is permitted.  

 

4. The flat roof area of the ground floor extension hereby permitted shall not be used as a balcony, 

roof garden or similar amenity area. 

 

REASON: To protect the reasonable privacy of the occupants of adjoining properties. 

 

5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with 

or without modification) no additional windows/rooflights shall be constructed in the first floor 

side elevations of the building. 

 

REASON: To safeguard privacy in the adjacent property. 

 

6. No work, including the excavation of service trenches, or the storage of any materials, or the 

lighting of bonfires shall be carried out within any root protection area of the protected trees.  

 

REASON: To ensure the safeguard of features that contribute to the character and landscape of the 

area. 

 

 

Contact Officer: Nathan Harris 

Telephone Number:  

Date: 3rd September 2025 

Page 54



DELGAT 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS  

 

Application Types Key 

 

Suffix 

 

 Suffix  

ADV Advertisement Consent LBC Listed Building Consent 

CC3REG County Council Regulation 3 LBD Listed Building Consent - Demolition 

CC4REG County Council Regulation 4 OUT Outline Application 

CM County Matters RES Reserved Matters Application 

FUL Full Application S73 Removal or Variation of Condition/s 

HHD Householder Application POB Discharge of Planning Obligation/s 

CLP 

CLASSM 

 

HAZ 

PN42 

 

PNT 

NMA 

WDN 

Certificate of Lawfulness Proposed 

Change of Use – Agriculture to 

Commercial 

Hazardous Substances Application 

Householder Application under Permitted 

Development legislation. 

Telecoms Prior Approval 

Non Material Amendment 

Withdrawn 

 

CLE 

CND 

PDET28 

PN56 

POROW 

TCA 

TPO 

 

FDO 

CONBGP 

Certificate of Lawfulness Existing 

Discharge of Conditions 

Agricultural Prior Approval 

Change of Use Agriculture to Dwelling 

Creation or Diversion of Right of Way 

Works to Trees in a Conservation Area 

Works to Trees subject of a Tree 

Preservation Order 

Finally Disposed Of 

Discharge of Biodiversity Gain Plan condition 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

 

Description 

 

Decision 

Code 

 

Description 

APP 

REF 

P1REQ 

P3APP 

P4APP 

Approve 

Refuse  

Prior Approval Required 

Prior Approval Approved 

Prior Approval Approved 

RNO 

ROB 

P2NRQ 

P3REF 

P4REF 

Raise no objection  

Raise Objection  

Prior Approval Not Required 

Prior Approval Refused 

Prior Approval Refused 

 

 

West Oxfordshire District Council – DELEGATED ITEMS 

Week Ending 14th August 2025 

 

  

Application Number.  

 

Ward. 

 

 Decision. 

 

 

1.  24/00795/RES Freeland and Hanborough APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Reserved matters application detailing layout, scale, appearance and landscaping for the 

construction of 150 new homes, internal roads with associated infrastructure and open space 

(Additional and revised documents and drawings received). 

Land North Of Witney Road Long Hanborough 

Mr Mark Utting 

 

 

Page 55

Agenda Item 5



DELGAT 
 

2.  24/02952/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a detached dwelling with associated access, biodiversity enhancements and 

landscaping 

Cedar House Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Afridi 

 

 

3.  24/03255/FUL Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of stable buildings to dwelling 

Cedar Lodge Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Omar Afridi 

 

 

4.  24/03256/LBC Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to convert stable buildings to a dwelling 

Cedar Lodge Church Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Afridi 

 

 

5.  25/00035/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of dilapidated outbuildings including the bothy and conservatory. Erection of single 

storey kitchen extension, conversion of existing barn to form additional living space and 

construction of in-fill link extension to main dwelling. 

The Old Farm House Chatterpie Lane Combe 

Mr And Mrs Crossley 

 

 

6.  25/00036/LBC Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include removal of dilapidated outbuildings including the 

bothy and conservatory. Erection of single storey kitchen extension, conversion of existing 

barn to form additional living space and construction of in-fill link extension to main dwelling. 

The Old Farm House Chatterpie Lane Combe 

Mr And Mrs Crossley 

 

 

Page 56



DELGAT 
 

7.  25/00348/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Dismantling of a rear outbuilding and construction of a new single storey extension along with 

other minor works to include reducing the first floor bathroom window and changing a 

ground floor window to a doorway. (Amended drawings) 

Old Post Office Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Mr Ian Lomas 

 

 

8.  25/00349/LBC The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external alterations to include the dismantling of a rear outbuilding and 

construction of a new single storey extension, along with other minor works to include 

reducing the first-floor bathroom window and changing a ground floor window to a doorway 

Old Post Office Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Mr Ian Lomas 

 

 

9.  25/00523/FUL Ascott and Shipton S106 

  

Conversion of agricultural buildings to a self-build dwelling 

Fourwinds Burford Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr & Mrs Rillie 

 

 

10.  25/00656/CONBGP The Bartons APP 

  

Discharge of Biodiversity Net Gain details required by Planning Permission 24/01777/FUL 

The Grove Over Worton Chipping Norton 

Keswick 

 

 

11.  25/00670/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Refurbishment works to include re-roofing, replacement canopy over the front door, 

alterations to boundary wall to widen existing vehicular access and installation of replacement 

timber entrance gates. 

Glovers House Main Street Over Norton 

Mr And Mrs Burton 

 

 

Page 57



DELGAT 
 

12.  25/00671/LBC Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to include re-roofing, replacement canopy over the front door, 

alterations to boundary wall to widen existing vehicular access and installation of replacement 

timber entrance gates. 

Glovers House Main Street Over Norton 

Mr And Mrs Burton 

 

 

13.  25/00766/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Application under Section 73 of the Town & Country Planning Act 1990 for the variation of 

condition 4 of planning permission 21/00189/FUL to allow landscape design amendments and 

various elevation, roof form and layout design changes within Phase 1 only and discharge of 

outline conditions 10 (a Construction Environmental Management Plan), 12 (Ecological Design 

Strategy) ,18 (Parking strategy),19 (Energy Report) and 26 (Waste collection strategy) in 

relation to Phase 1 only of planning permission 21/00189/FUL. 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

14.  25/00791/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (surface water drainage strategy) of planning permission 

24/02206/FUL. 

Whiteways Technical Centre Enstone Chipping Norton 

Alpine Racing Ltd 

 

 

15.  25/00902/PDET28 Ascott and Shipton P3APP 

  

Construction of an agricultural storage barn 

Dash Grange Leafield Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Crossland 

 

 

16.  25/00929/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Construction of a single storey commercial warehouse and workshop 

Land North East Of Station Yard The Leys Chipping Norton 

Mr Dan Stafford 

 

 

17.  25/00952/CND Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 9 (landscaping details) of Planning Permission 23/02541/FUL. 

Chadlington Manor House East End Chadlington 

Mr and Mrs Hartz 

 

 

Page 58



DELGAT 
 

18.  25/01028/HHD The Bartons APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Alterations and erection of single storey extension together with associated landscaping 

works. (amended drawings) 

The Great Barn Manor Road Sandford St Martin 

Mr And Mrs Fitzgibbon 

 

 

19.  25/01064/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Change of use of land from agricultural to create a secure dog field for dog walking and 

training, including works to increase height of boundary fencing, installation of metal entrance 

gates and provision of hardstanding for parking of vehicles. 

Car Park At Countrywide Storage Hook Norton Road Chipping Norton 

Miss Chantal Palmer 

 

 

20.  25/01112/TCA The Bartons RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Silver birch - Fell 

Hill Cottage 6 Jacobs Yard Middle Barton 

Mrs Catherine Potts 

 

 

21.  25/01137/HHD Chipping Norton APP 

  

Erection of a detached garden room (part retrospective) 

76 London Road Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Graeme McCulloch 

 

 

22.  25/01181/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Replacement of existing outbuildings with a new garage and gate to existing drive (Amended 

plans) 

Hill Crest Field Assarts Witney 

Mr Richard Rimmer 

 

 

23.  25/01279/FUL Charlbury and Finstock WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Conversion of garage/ workshop to a dwelling 

Well Cottage Thames Street Charlbury 

Mr Alex Ottewell 

 

 

Page 59



DELGAT 
 

24.  25/01289/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of two storey rear extension 

6 Hastings Hill Churchill Chipping Norton 

Mr Chris Manners 

 

 

25.  25/01292/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Widen access and addition of new gates 

Furze House Chatterpie Lane Combe 

Mr Alexis Roberts 

 

 

26.  25/01324/ADV Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Re-branding of two fascia signs and a hanging sign 

14 High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Miss Marina Alleyne 

 

 

27.  25/01332/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolish existing single storey side and rear extensions, erection of two storey side 

extension and single storey rear extension with new front porch (Part retrospective) 

16 Church Rise Finstock Chipping Norton 

Mr Alan Beadle 

 

 

28.  25/01334/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Works to include new shop front and Internal alterations to shop, replacement of single 

storey extension to create a 2 bed dwelling, conversion of upper floors of no.18 to create a 2 

bed maisonette with Improvements to existing maisonette at no.17. Associated works 

including engineering operations, landscaping and demolition of remaining part of boundary 

walling and attached lean-to tin shed between no.17 and 18. (amended plans) 

17 - 18 High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Aiden Murray 

 

 

Page 60



DELGAT 
 

29.  25/01335/LBC Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to include new shop front and Internal alterations to shop, 

replacement of single storey extension to create a 2 bed dwelling, Improvements to existing 

maisonette at no.17 together with associated works including engineering operations, 

landscaping and demolition of remaining part of boundary walling and attached lean-to tin 

shed between no.17 and 18. (amended plans) 

17 - 18 High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Aiden Murray 

 

 

30.  25/01346/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of a single storey rear extension 

1 Brooks Row Leafield Witney 

Mrs Katie Gough 

 

 

31.  25/01361/HHD Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of rear lean-to extension/conservatory and erection of single storey extension 

with flat roof. Conversion of garage to create additional living space. 

23 Union Street Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Ms Portia McCahill 

 

 

32.  25/01376/FUL Chipping Norton APP 

  

Single storey extension to existing conference room 

Cotswolds Hotel And Spa Southcombe Chipping Norton 

Cotswolds Club Hotel And Spa 

 

 

33.  25/01379/HHD Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single carport on the driveway. 

Glebe Cottage The Ridings Stonesfield 

Mr Richard Froggatt 

 

 

34.  25/01407/CLP Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Certificate of Lawfulness (Provision of a new wheeled sports facility, of construction concrete, 

in an area of existing recreation). 

Recreation Ground New Street Chipping Norton 

Mrs Katherine Jang 

 

 

Page 61



DELGAT 
 

35.  25/01411/FUL Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Repairs and refurbishment of existing agricultural building, to include removal of asbestos roof 

and re-roof using tiles together with new doors, new guttering and re-pointing of stonework. 

Coronation Cottage East End Chadlington 

Mrs Catherine Hartz 

 

 

36.  25/01418/HHD Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

REF 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of fence above dry stone wall (retrospective) 

Pinewood 89 Lower End Leafield 

Mrs Charlotte Foster 

 

 

37.  25/01420/CLP Stonesfield and Tackley APP 

  

Certificate of lawfulness (erection of a single-storey side extension) 

3 Woodleys Cottages Woodleys Woodstock 

Mr Dudley Moor-Radford 

 

 

38.  25/01423/LBC Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of garage and single storey rear extensions. Erection of replacement 

garage/outbuilding and single storey rear extensions, replacement fenestration, installation of 

air conditioning unit and internal alterations. 

Cromwells House  28 High Street Woodstock 

N Rossco 

 

 

39.  25/01424/S73 Woodstock and Bladon APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 25/00444/HHD to allow amendments to approved 

plans 

Cromwells House  28 High Street Woodstock 

N Rossco 

 

 

40.  25/01427/CND Burford APP 

  

Discharge of condition 3 (schedule of materials) of Planning Permission 23/03174/S73 

Tadpole Farm Taynton Burford 

Mr and Mrs James and Sophie Bainbridge 

 

 

Page 62



DELGAT 
 

41.  25/01448/FUL Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Demolition of the existing garage and erection of a dwelling with parking and amenity space, 

with new access and parking to the existing dwelling 

Wychwood Place The Ridings Leafield 

Mrs Jackson 

 

 

42.  25/01453/HHD Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Single storey rear extension. 

Ivy Cottage Hixet Wood Charlbury 

A Carter 

 

 

43.  25/01454/CLP Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of vehicular and pedestrian gates. 

17 - 18 High Street Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Robin Lomas 

 

 

44.  25/01463/CND Burford APP 

  

Discharge of conditions 6 (details of access) and 8 (tree protection) of Planning Permission 

25/00540/HHD 

Dower House  Westhall Hill Fulbrook 

Mrs Vanessa McDowell 

 

 

45.  25/01468/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Extension and redevelopment of existing dwelling together with associated works and 

landscaping. 

Spring House Gagingwell Chipping Norton 

Thomas Phillips 

 

 

46.  25/01470/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing kitchen and bathroom. Erection of single storey link extension to enclose 

courtyard and conversion of outbuilding to provide additional living space. Construction of 

first floor extension to create ensuite for bedroom 2. (amended plans) 

Cartref  21 Witney Street Burford 

P Bigwood 

 

 

Page 63



DELGAT 
 

47.  25/01471/LBC Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Removal of existing kitchen and bathroom. Internal and external alterations to include 

erection of single storey link extension to enclose courtyard and conversion of outbuilding to 

provide additional living space. Construction of first floor extension to create ensuite for 

bedroom 2 and changes to ground and first floor layout. Urgent repair and structural works. 

(part retrospective) (amended plans) 

Cartref  21 Witney Street Burford 

P Bigwood 

 

 

48.  25/01473/FUL Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Change of use of dwelling to short-term and holiday letting 

6 Wellington Cottages Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Elli Carr 

 

 

49.  25/01478/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Change of use of Barn from self-contained living accommodation and holiday let (sui generis) 

to a residential dwelling (C3). 

The Field Barn Asthall Leigh Witney 

Mrs R Jones 

 

 

50.  25/01400/S73 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 24/03032/S73 to allow the 'Beacon of Dreams' 

art installation to remain in its current location for an extended period of time. 

Soho Farmhouse Great Tew Chipping Norton 

Soho House UK Ltd 

 

 

51.  25/01520/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Partial discharge of conditions 7 (details of windows and doors) and 8 (schedule of materials) 

of Planning Permission 22/02008/FUL and 2 (schedule of materials) and 3 (details of windows 

and doors) of Listed Building Consent 22/02009/LBC 

Land North Of Home Farm Chastleton 

Maureen and Derek Harte 

 

 

Page 64



DELGAT 
 

52.  25/01522/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of planning permission 24/01750/HHD to allow an increase of roof 

height by 0.3m. 

Sperrings Witney Lane Leafield 

Dr Richard Shuttlewood 

 

 

53.  25/01529/HHD Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Erection of a porch 

Bay Tree House Cleveley Road Enstone 

Mr B Chavda 

 

 

54.  25/01532/HHD Burford APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Replace garage and conservatory with single storey extension. Replace uPVC windows and 

doors with painted timber. 

Southwolds  22 Tanners Lane Burford 

Mr Marcus Newman 

 

 

55.  25/01531/HHD Chadlington and Churchill APP 

  

Erection of single storey extension and replace existing window in southeast elevation with a 

door. 

The Rickyard West End Chadlington 

Mr Thomas Morshead 

 

 

56.  25/01551/HHD Burford APP 

  

Demolition of existing rear extension and erection of 2 storey and single storey rear 

extensions and landscaping. (amended plans) 

Wychwold  Upper End Fulbrook 

Ms And Mr Sam And Andrew Weller And Carpenter 

 

 

57.  25/01552/CND Charlbury and Finstock SPL 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

APPROVED:-REFUSED:- 

Gilgen Witney Road Finstock 

Mr Philip Johnson 

 

 

Page 65



DELGAT 
 

58.  25/01556/FUL Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Change of Use of Agricultural Barns A and B to light industrial use 

South Lawn Farm South Lawn Swinbrook 

Mr W Mackinnon 

 

 

59.  25/01561/S73 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 24/01002/HHD to reduce the footprint of the new 

outbuilding for library/garden room, plant room and garden store 

Dower House Chastleton Moreton-In-Marsh 

Mrs Catriona Braybrooke 

 

 

60.  25/01571/S73 Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of condition 2 of permission 25/00414/HHD to allow alterations to the two storey 

extension to include a timber link to the main dwelling 

Red House Witney Lane Leafield 

Mr Richard Tomlinson 

 

 

61.  25/01612/HHD Brize Norton and Shilton APP 

  

Demolish conservatory and build new ground floor rear extension. 

Horsefield Cottage Field Assarts Witney 

Mr And Mrs Verge 

 

 

62.  25/01627/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 5 (sample slate) of Listed Building Consent 24/02947/LBC 

Great Tew Primary School The Green Great Tew 

Debra Scott-Potter 

 

 

63.  25/01640/S73 Chipping Norton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Variation of Condition 2 of Planning Permission 25/00462/FUL to allow changes to the layout 

to provide open plan kitchen living and dining space as well as a second bedroom on the 

ground floor. 

Georgian House  21 West Street Chipping Norton 

Mr Daniel Wright 

 

 

Page 66



DELGAT 
 

64.  25/01642/FUL Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Erection of single and two storey extension to form new kitchen, restaurant and guestroom 

accommodation. Associated parking and landscaping works. 

The Black Prince  2 Manor Road Woodstock 

Mr Dustin Dryden 

 

 

65.  25/01643/LBC Woodstock and Bladon WDN 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Internal and external works to include erection of single and two storey extension to form 

new kitchen, restaurant and guestroom accommodation. Associated parking and landscaping 

works. 

The Black Prince  2 Manor Road Woodstock 

Mr Dustin Dryden 

 

 

66.  25/01652/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (Arboricultural Impact Assessment) of planning permission 

25/00856/HHD. 

15 Oxford Road Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Mr Graham Winstone 

 

 

67.  25/01660/TCA Ascott and Shipton RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Leylandii: Rear garden: Fell in sections to ground level. 

Robins Acre Swinbrook Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Ty Unwin 

 

 

68.  25/01662/CLP Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Certificate of Lawfulness (Increased area of pitched roof and reduced glazing to 

conservatory). 

5 Rosamund Drive Woodstock Oxfordshire 

Twemlow 

 

 

69.  25/01664/CND Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 7 of permission 24/00854/HHD and condition 6 of Listed Building 

Consent 24/00855/LBC  (Submission of full details of external lighting) 

Upper Farm Cleveley Chipping Norton 

Mr & Mrs Craughan 

 

 

Page 67



DELGAT 
 

70.  25/01695/TCA Burford RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Oak tree - To remove low branches on the east verge on entry to Orchard Rise 

1 Orchard Rise Burford Oxfordshire 

Mr Trevor Yates 

 

 

71.  25/01672/TCA Hailey, Minster Lovell and 

Leafield 

RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Cherry (Prunus spp.) - fell to ground level 

7 Jordans Close Akeman Street Ramsden 

Mr Steve Maclennan 

 

 

72.  25/01679/TCA Ascott and Shipton RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T11  Cherry - Crown lift 2.5 metres, reduce limb growing over neighbouring properties wall 

by 1 metre 

T13  Whitebeam - Sectionary fell to ground level 

15 Sinnels Field Shipton Under Wychwood Chipping Norton 

Glennis Fletcher 

 

 

73.  25/01706/FUL Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

  

Proposed dropped kerb 

Allen Building And Construction Compound New Town Little Compton 

Mr M Allen 

 

 

74.  25/01707/TCA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

G1 (Group of 4 Poplar trees) - Pollard/significantly reduce 

Great Tew Primary School The Green Great Tew 

Mrs Lucy Miles 

 

 

Page 68



DELGAT 
 

75.  25/01709/SCREEN Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

EIANOT 

  

EIA Screening Opinion request in relation to Outline planning application (with all matters 

reserved except access) for the demolition of existing buildings and the redevelopment and 

expansion of Enstone Business Park to provide up to 64,305sqm of flexible employment 

floorspace within use class B2, B8 and/or E G II and III with associated landscape, drainage and 

external works. 

Enstone Airfield Industrial Estate South Enstone Airfield Enstone 

Mr Paul Slater 

 

 

76.  25/01696/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Walnut T1 - Crown reduction up to 3m 

Silver birch T2 - Fell to ground level 

Silver birch T3 - Rebalance crown 

3 Crawborough Terrace Crawborough Charlbury 

Mr William Ford 

 

 

77.  25/01700/TCA The Bartons RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1. Horse Chestnut- Fell to ground level. 

T2. Ash- Fell stem to 1m from union. 

T3. Ash- Fell to ground level. 

T4. Horse chestnut- Reduce whole canopy by up to 2m. 

T5. Horse Chestnut- Reduce height by up to 5m. 

T6. Horse Chestnut- Fell to ground level. 

G7. Leyland hedge- Reduce height by up to 4m. 

The Old Rectory 30 Enstone Road Westcote Barton 

Mr Charles Park 

 

 

78.  25/01705/TCA Stonesfield and Tackley RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

G1 (Consisting of 2 Leylandii Cypress) - Fell to ground level 

St James Close Churchfields Stonesfield 

My Phillip Melrose 

 

 

79.  25/01711/PDET28 Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

P2NRQ 

  

Erection of an agricultural storage barn. 

Land South Of Potato Town Banbury Road Swerford 

The Great Tew Estate Office 

 

 

Page 69



DELGAT 
 

80.  25/01714/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of condition 9 (details of external lighting) of Planning Permission 22/03540/FUL 

Eyston Piece Swinbrook Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr U Parmeggiani 

 

 

81.  25/01722/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1 Apple tree - fell to ground level 

Long Meadow Church Street Charlbury 

Mrs Sue Adcock 

 

 

82.  25/01723/TCA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1. Lawson cypress - Fell to ground level. 

T2. Ash - Fell to ground level. 

Dower House Chastleton Moreton-In-Marsh 

Mr Luke Harris 

 

 

83.  25/01800/TPO Freeland and Hanborough APP 

  

T1 - Douglas Fir - remove tree to ground level, grind stump and lateral roots - replant in the 

next planting season 

Potencail replacement species - Yew, Itailain Cyrpess or Holm Oak 

14 Witney Road Long Hanborough Witney 

Mr Nick Allen 

 

 

84.  25/01803/TCA Woodstock and Bladon RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Yew tree in decline marked orange on map. Reduce to monolith. Leave a height of vibrant 

epicormic growth Roughly 12-14ft marked orange on photo. 

Chaucers House  28 Park Street Woodstock 

Banks 

 

 

85.  25/01804/CND Milton Under Wychwood APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (construction environmental management plan) of planning 

permission 25/01222/FUL 

Quartern The Heath Milton Under Wychwood 

Mr Matt Cavill 

 

 

Page 70



DELGAT 
 

86.  25/01805/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1  Plum. Crown Reduction - Reducing the height and spread of the tree by up to 3 metres. 

11 Ticknell Piece Road Charlbury Chipping Norton 

Mrs Holloway 

 

 

87.  25/01811/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1  Cedar - Remove major deadwood and broken/hanging branches from throughout crown.  

Crown lift low branches over neighbouring garden to 3 metres above ground level. 

Cemetery Thames Street Charlbury 

Lisa Wilkinson 

 

 

88.  25/01812/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1 & T2  Crack Willow - Repollard both trees back to original pollard points.  Sever ivy at 

base of both trees 

Street Record Spelsbury Road Charlbury 

Lisa Wilkins 

 

 

89.  25/01817/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1 - Leylandii - dead, fell to ground level. 

T2 - Hawthorn - dead, fell to ground level. 

T3 - Silver birch - fell to ground level. 

Long Meadow Church Street Charlbury 

Mrs Sue Adcock 

 

 

90.  25/01823/CND Charlbury and Finstock APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of Condition 3 (details of windows and doors) of Listed Building Consent 

24/01487/LBC 

The Stone House Church Street Charlbury 

Mr Alex Birch 

 

 

91.  25/01841/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of Condition 8 (Residential Travel Pack) of Planning Permission 22/01768/FUL. 

Street Record Rye Grass Woodstock 

BHPH Architects 

 

 

Page 71



DELGAT 
 

92.  25/01848/TCA Burford RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

G1 - 2 x Conifer forming one canopy - Fell to ground level. 

The Willows  Cheltenham Road Burford 

Mr Timms 

 

 

93.  25/01853/TCA Brize Norton and Shilton RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Birch Tree (T1) located at the centre of the garden. Thin by 15%, to improve light penetration 

to the understory plants.  

Hawthorn x 2 (G2) located in the paddock/pond area.  Reduce crown by 1-2 metres. 

The Retreat Swinbrook Burford 

Bloor 

 

 

94.  25/01854/NMA Kingham, Rollright and 

Enstone 

APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

 Conversion of loft space and associated rooms, change in roof covering and external finishes 

to approved extension, rebuilding section of garage wall and other minor amendments (Non 

material amendment to allow amendments to the location of roof light and roof of the glazed 

link) 

Bell House Chipping Norton Road Little Tew 

Lauren Bryce 

 

 

95.  25/01867/TCA Chipping Norton RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

G1 - Holly / Ash mix x 4 Stems - Fell .  

T2 - Ash - Fell.  

T3 - Apple - Reduce lower limb with decay and hollowing by up to 3 metres to reduce weight  

& remove deadwood.  

T5 - Conifer - Fell. 

18 The Leys Chipping Norton Oxfordshire 

Mr Bryn Stamp 

 

 

Page 72



DELGAT 
 

96.  25/01868/TCA Ascott and Shipton RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1 -Acer-Reduce by 0.5 metres-to improve shape and form.  

T2-Smoke bush-Reduce height by 0.5 metre -to improve shape and form 

T3-Conifer-Crown raise to 3.5 metres -to improve shape and form.  

BT1-Cherry-Reduce by 3 metres .crown raise to 2.5 metres-to improve shape and form.  

BT2-Cherry-Remove dead wood.reduce by up to 2 metres.crown raise to 2.5 metres-to 

improve shape and form.  

BT3-Malus-Reduce by 1.5 metres -to improve shape and form. 

Hunters Lodge High Street Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mrs Taylor 

 

 

97.  25/01869/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

MT2-Walnut-frame work Pollard at a height or 5 metres just below snapped out stem -due to 

storm damage and decay. 

Woodlands The Slade Charlbury 

Mrs Tainsh 

 

 

98.  25/01872/TCA Charlbury and Finstock RNO 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

T1 - Hornbeam - Re pollard to 1 metre below old points, Crown raise to 3.5 metres & 

Remove x 1 low limb to clear shed access.  

T2 - Ash - Pollard at 3.5 metres (best points just above trellis).  

T3 - Cherry - Fell ground level .  

T4 - Walnut - Reduce back to boundary 

The Cottage Dancers Hill Charlbury 

Mr Smyth 

 

 

99.  25/01886/CND Woodstock and Bladon APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (details of the junction) of Planning Permission 24/00602/FUL 

Land North Of Hill Rise Woodstock 

Miss Tammy Scullion 

 

 

100.  25/01889/CND Chipping Norton APP 

  

Discharge of condition 4 (noise report) of Planning Permission 25/01001/FUL (retrospective) 

Aldi Stores Ltd  Banbury Road Chipping Norton 

 

 

 

Page 73



DELGAT 
 

101.  25/01947/CND Ascott and Shipton APP 

 Affecting a Conservation Area 

 

Discharge of conditions 6 (detailed record drawing) and 8 (Archaeological Written Scheme of 

Investigation) of Planning Permission 22/03113/HHD 

Salus House Milton Road Shipton Under Wychwood 

Mr Craig Satchwell 

 

 

 

Page 74



Appeal Decisions 

 

APP/D3125/D/25/3365914 

10 Hensington Close, Woodstock, OX20 1LZ 

The development proposed is demolition of existing garage, conservatory and rear single storey 

building and construction of side/rear extension. 

Appeal allowed.  

 

APP/D3125/W/24/3352523 

Plot 1, Land at Church Enstone, OX7 4NL 

The development proposed is construction of one single storey 2-bedroom stone dwelling house. 

Appeal dismissed.  

 

Page 75

Agenda Item 6

https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3365914&CoID=0
https://acp.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/ViewCase.aspx?CaseID=3352523&CoID=0


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	4 Applications for Development
	5 Applications Determined under Delegated Powers
	6 Appeal Decisions

